Offering Memorandum: Part II of Offering Document (Exhibit A to Form
C)

AtomBeam Technologies Inc.
1036 Country Club Dr, Suite 200
Moraga, CA 94556
https://atombeamtech.com/

Up to $3,948,670.00 in Common Stock at $5.00
Minimum Target Amount: $10,000.00

A crowdfunding investment involves risk. You should not invest any funds in this
offering unless you can afford to lose your entire investment.

In making an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of
the issuer and the terms of the offering, including the merits and risks involved. These
securities have not been recommended or approved by any federal or state securities
commission or regulatory authority. Furthermore, these authorities have not passed
upon the accuracy or adequacy of this document.

The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission does not pass upon the merits of any
securities offered or the terms of the offering, nor does it pass upon the accuracy or
completeness of any offering document or literature.

These securities are offered under an exemption from registration; however, the U.5.
Securities and Exchange Commission has not made an independent determination
that these securities are exempt from registration.



Company:

Company: AtomBeam Technologies Inc.

Address: 1036 Country Club Dr, Suite 200, Moraga, CA 94556
State of Incorporation: DE

Date Incorporated: August 17, 2017

Terms:

Equity

Offering Minimum: $10,000.00 | 2,000 shares of Common Stock
Offering Maximum: $3,948,670.00 | 789,734 shares of Common Stock
Type of Security Offered: Common Stock

Purchase Price of Security Offered: $5.00

Minimum Investment Amount (per investor): $500.00

Voting Rights of Securities Sold in this Offering

Voting Proxy. Each Investor shall appoint the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
(the "CEO™), or his or her successor, as the Investor’s true and lawful proxy and
attorney, with the power to act alone and with full power of substitution, to,
consistent with this instrument and on behalf of the Investor, (i) vote all Securities,
(ii) give and receive notices and communications, (iii) execute any instrument or
document that the CEO determines is necessary or appropriate in the exercise of its
authority under this instrument, and (iv) take all actions necessary or appropriate in
the judgment of the CEO for the accomplishment of the foregoing. The proxy and
power granted by the Investor pursuant to this Section are coupled with an interest.
Such proxy and power will be irrevocable. The proxy and power, so long as the
Investor is an individual, will survive the death, incompetency and disability of the
Investor and, so long as the Investor is an entity, will survive the merger or
reorganization of the Investor or any other entity holding the Securities. However, the
Proxy will terminate upon the closing of a firm-commitment underwritten public
offering pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act of
1933 covering the offer and sale of Common Stock or the effectiveness of a
registration statement under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 covering the
Common Stock.

*Maximum Number of Shares Offered subject to adjustment for bonus shares. See
Bonus info below.

Investment Incentives and Bonuses*

Time-Based Investment Incentives

Friends and Family Early Birds

Invest within the first 96 hours and receive 40% bonus shares.



Super Early Bird Bonus

Invest within the first week and receive 30% bonus shares.
Early Bird Bonus

Invest within the first two weeks and receive 15% bonus shares.
Amount-Based Investment Incentives

Tier 1| $5,000+

Invest $5,000+ and receive 5% bonus shares.

Tier 2 | $10,000+

Invest $10,000+ and receive 10% bonus shares.

Tier 3 | $20,000+

Invest $20,000+ and receive 20% bonus shares.

*All perks occur when the offering is completed.

The 10% StartEngine Owners’ Bonus

AtomBeam Technologies, Inc. will offer 10% additional bonus shares for all
investments that are committed by investors that are eligible for the StartEngine
Crowdfunding Inc. OWNer's bonus.

This means eligible StartEngine shareholders will receive a 10% bonus for any shares
they purchase in this offering. For example, if you buy 100 shares of Common Stock at
$5.00 / share, vou will receive 110 shares of Common Stock, meaning vou'll own 110
shares for $500. Fractional shares will not be distributed and share bonuses will be
determined by rounding down to the nearest whole share.

This 10% Bonus is only valid during the investor's eligibility period. Investors eligible
for this bonus will also have priority if they are on a waitlist to invest and the company
surpasses its maximum funding goal. They will have the first opportunity to invest
should room in the offering become available if prior investments are canceled or fail.

Investors will receive the highest single bonus they are eligible for among the bonuses
based on the amount invested and time of offering elapsed (if any). Eligible investors
will also receive the Owner’s Bonus in addition to the aforementioned bonus.

The Company and its Business

Company Overview

AtomBeam is a highly sophisticated California-based company with a technology that
has the potential to change the way machine/IoT data is transmitted and stored.



Protected by eight issued patents, AtomBeam’s technology typically reduces IoT data
by 75% while adding ultralightweight encryption. According to IDC, by 2025, half of
all data generated will come from machines/loT. Data compression algorithms, such
as zip, are ineffective for IoT data. AtomBeam is the only effective way to reduce this
fastest-growing data category, making it potentially a key component for a broad
array of potential uses, including industrial machines, wearables, smart cities,
spacecraft, medical devices, and virtually every machine that generates data. In many
ways, AtomBeam is the real Pied Piper, or even better.

AtomBeam technology is a radical departure from conventional data reduction, known
as data compression. Compression seeks out repeated data patterns in a file, inserting
placeholders where it finds duplicated patterns, which has the effect of reducing the
size of the file. In contrast, AtomBeam uses the latest machine learning techniques to
find patterns across thousands of files, saving each often-repeated pattern in a
Codebook and assigning to each saved pattern a Codeword, or index, which is much
smaller than the pattern itself. Once the Codebook is complete, it is inserted into a
source of data, such as a cell phone, and also in a destination, such as a cloud server,
allowing the source and destination to communicate entirely in Codewords alone. This
dramatically reduces the amount of data that is sent and makes communication
commensurately faster. Compression is ineffective on IoT files, which are typically too
small to have many repeated patterns within one file; for AtomBeam, however, file
size is virtually irrelevant. This makes AtomBeam's technology a potential standard
for machine-to-machine communications.

AtomBeam holds 11 issued/allowed and 13 pending patents. The Company's pending
patent portfolio is extensive and relates to both proposed uses of the technology as
well as mathematical and architectural approaches that further optimize the
Company's software. Potential uses include applications unrelated to loT, including
its use in data centers. Patent filings related to optimization include the application of
highly complex mathematical techniques and approaches that are expected to have
the effect of increasing execution speed, improving security, and further improving
compaction ratios.

The Company markets its product to manufacturers and end-users of 1oT devices,
including for use in cars, heavy machinery, factories, wearables, smart buildings, and
much else, with significant traction with several large corporations. AtomBeam's
revenue is derived from annual license and maintenance fees based on the number of
servers and connected devices. The company also seeks to license resellers, who build
AtomBeam into their IoT solution and offer the combination service to their
customers. Resellers largely support the combined product and remit a share of the
revenue that is received as payment for use of AtomBeam’s software to AtomBeam.

AtomBeam Technologis Inc. is currently in the pre-revenue stage of development. The
company was founded in September 2017 as a Delaware LLC, Drivewarp LLC. In 2019,
the company changed its name and corporate form to AtomBeam Technologies Inc., a
Delaware C-Corp effective January 29, 2019.



Competitors and Industry

AtomBeam holds a unique position in the IoT industry. The Company's software
primarily impacts [oT connectivity, which is estimated to be a $163 billion market in
2020 and expected to grow to $493 billion in 2026
(https://www.businesswire.com/news/home/20211015005387/en/Global-1oT-
Connectivity-Market- Analysis-and-Forecast-Report-2021---
ResearchAndMarkets.com), a 20.9% CAGR. This market includes the cost of IoT use of
cellular, private, and satellite networks. For networks carrying machine-generated,
non-video data, AtomBeam has the potential to reduce the amount of data needed to
be transported by an average of 75%; most users can expect to realize significant
savings as a result, and for those with metered, by the megabyte plans, reduction in
the amount of data being transmitted is directly correlated to the compaction ratio.
For network operators, the added bandwidth potential that AtomBeam provides can
effectively replace the need to launch more satellites or eliminate other investments
in costly, more capable hardware.

For its data reduction capability, AtomBeam’s primary competition is increased IoT
network capacity, such as the expansion of cellular networks, launching more
satellites, and upgrades of private [oT systems. For increased data speed, competition
could be construed as edge computing solutions such as those sold by MobiledgeX,
Mutable, Edge Gravity, Ori, and others. AtomBeam also provides enhanced IoT
security; there are many IoT encryption and security monitoring companies, such as
Armis, Claroty, Check Point, Forescout, NAGRA, Palo Alto Networks, and many others,
but AtomBeam is more likely to be used to enhance other security products by
combining the technologies than as a substitute for an IoT security product.
AtomBeam’s unique technology and patent moat make it well protected against the
competition, although the possibility that a competitor could introduce a product that
offers similar benefits as AtomBeam’s cannot be discounted.

The Company's focus on satellite data from an operational standpoint consists of two
stages. Initially, AtomBeam is concentrating its efforts to close three prospective
customers that represent two different satellite data constituencies, remote sensing
and satellite terminals. A key part of this effort is the association of one of the remote
sensing companies with one of the largest satellite operators that use a standard
software module for customer connectivity. By integrating into that module, the
remote sensing company becomes a test case for the entire satellite operator. Once
proven, the satellite operator may adopt AtomBeam widely and relatively quickly,
since the Company's software would be pre-integrated. Moreover, if the satellite
operator has demonstrated AtomBeam's effect because satellite bandwidth is a
commodity and pricing is generally driven by the market if one operator has
established a means of lowering its cost and therefore pricing, others may be
compelled to follow. In that event, AtomBeam could benefit considerably, since
competitors to the initial satellite operator may feel a need to follow their lead.

Current Stage and Roadmap



Between 2017 - 2020, AtomBeam spent most of its focus on research, development,
testing, and patent filings. Now, AtomBeam has a production product that is in
customer field testing. Its customer portal demo site, along with the first production
release of its product, was launched in October 2020 and is being used extensively for
testing data samples by prospective customers. In addition, AtomBeam offers its
customers a “software development kit”, or SDK, which includes a copy of the
AtomBeam software, manuals, testing software, and other components used by
customers for in-depth testing and integration into their solution.

Several large companies are testing, or plan to test AtomBeam’s product, including a
major networking equipment maker, Saab, a cloud service provider, a satellite
operator, a blockchain company, and others. Two big pharma companies have
approached AtomBeam to inquire about the use of our product for bioinformatics,
which while it is a good target cannot be addressed with the current company
resources. In 2020 AtomBeam signed a deal with a Japanese distributor that is
marketing AtomBeam's product to their customers. Several smaller companies are
also working with the company to integrate AtomBeam into their offerings, as well,
and when the sales are closed could represent important milestones for the company,
since it demonstrates to the major companies the viability of the technology.

For the present, AtomBeam is focused on satellite data, due to the following factors:

1. The industry is in the process of being disrupted by Starlink and other LEO
companies, and the legacy satellite operators are searching for ways to increase the
productivity of their existing constellations;

2. The cost of satellite data connectivity is high and bandwidth is limited;

3. Satellite is a growing market and many potential users could be accessed if the cost
of connectivity was lower.

Building AtomBeam into a product that is sold by a major company offers an
important opportunity for AtomBeam to reach a far larger set of potential users than
the company can on its own. Consequently, AtomBeam’s marketing focus is on
resellers of satellite connectivity or who use satellite data as a core part of their
services. Several of these companies may see the opportunity to build a competitive
advantage for their products by building in AtomBeam, as well as a new revenue
source by means of reselling AtomBeam's technology. For AtomBeam, this approach
provides an opportunity to greatly leverage its limited engineering and sales resources
to address much bigger opportunities than would otherwise be possible by addressing
one customer at a time, with the exception of very large end-user customers.

The Company's focus on satellite data from an operational standpoint consists of two
stages. [nitially, AtomBeam is concentrating its efforts to close three prospective
customers that represent two different satellite data constituencies, remote sensing
and satellite terminals. A key part of this effort is the association of one of the remote
sensing companies with one of the largest satellite operators that use a standard
software module for customer connectivity. By integrating into that module, the



remote sensing company becomes a test case for the entire satellite operator. Once
proven, the satellite operator may adopt AtomBeam widely and relatively quickly,
since the Company's software would be pre-integrated. Moreover, if the satellite
operator has demonstrated AtomBeam's effect because satellite bandwidth is a
commodity and pricing is generally driven by the market if one operator has
established a means of lowering its cost and therefore pricing, others may be
compelled to follow. In that event, AtomBeam could benefit, since competitors to the
initial satellite operator may feel a need to follow their lead.

The Team

Officers and Directors

Name: Charles Yeomans
Charles Yeomans's current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: CEO
Dates of Service: September 01, 2017 - Present
Responsibilities: The CEO is responsible for execution of the policies and
strategy approved by the Company's board of directors. Compensation is
currently $120,000 annually, expected to rise to $225,000 post a fundraising
round of at least $4 million in proceeds, or whenever the company achieves a
required level of revenue of $200,000 in a month.

e Position: Chairman
Dates of Service: September 01, 2017 - Present
Responsibilities: Promulgating agendas for and chairing board meetings

Other business experience in the past three years:

¢ Employer: Trigemina Inc.
Title: Chairman
Dates of Service: September 01, 2011 - Present
Responsibilities: Chairing board meetings, occasionally interface with
management.

Name: Aliasghar Riahi
Aliasghar Riahi's current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Chief Technical Officer
Dates of Service: September 01, 2017 - Present



Responsibilities: Direction of conceptualizing, architecting and coding the
company's product. Compensation is currently $120,000 annually, rising to
$180,000 post a fundraising round of at least $4 million in proceeds, or whenever
the company achieves a required level of revenue of $200,000 in a month.

Other business experience in the past three years:

¢ Employer: UC Berkeley
Title: Information Systems Analyst
Dates of Service: August 01, 2017 - November 01, 2018
Responsibilities: Management of aspects of the university's data systems.

Name: Joshua Cooper, PhD

Joshua Cooper, PhD's current primary role is with University of South Carolina. Joshua
Cooper, PhD currently services 5 hours per week in their role with the Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Chief Scientist
Dates of Service: February 18, 2018 - Present
Responsibilities: Conceptualizing and architecting software and potential
applications. Paid on hourly basis of $200 per hour, and has 250,000 in options.

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: University of South Carolina
Title: Professor of Mathematics
Dates of Service: August 15, 2006 - Present
Responsibilities: Teaching and research

Name: Kayla Vallarta
Kayla Vallarta's current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Controller
Dates of Service: June 01, 2020 - Present
Responsibilities: Keeping corporate books, reporting, banking

¢ Position: Corporate Secretary
Dates of Service: July 17, 2020 - Present
Responsibilities: Maintenance of corporate books and records. No cash
compensation currently, owns 80,000 shares of common stock.



Other business experience in the past three years:

¢ Emplover: Trigemina Inc.
Title: Director of Finance and Policy

Dates of Service: September 01, 2012 - December 31, 2020
Responsibilities: Maintenance of corporate financial records and banking

Name: Courtney Benham

Courtney Benham's current primary role is with Martin Ray Winery. Courtney Benham
currently services 1 hours per week in their role with the Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Director
Dates of Service: September 01, 2017 - Present
Responsibilities: Member of Board of Directors, compensation is $0 cash and
69,000 shares in a restricted share grant with vesting over 48 months.

Other business experience in the past three years:

¢ Employer: Martin Ray Winery
Title: Owner
Dates of Service: January 01, 1992 - Present
Responsibilities: General management

Name: Mojgan Haddad

Mojgan Haddad's current primary role is with Corin Group. Mojgan Haddad currently
services 1 hours per week in their role with the Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

® Position: Director
Dates of Service: September 17, 2017 - Present
Responsibilities: Member of Board of Directors, compensation is $0 cash and
69,000 shares in a restricted share grant with vesting over 48 months.

Other business experience in the past three years:

¢ Employer: Corin Group
Title: Senior Director of Software Engineering
Dates of Service: January 01, 2020 - June 30, 2021
Responsibilities: Lead Software engineering department for the company.



Other business experience in the past three years:

¢ Emplover: Talis Biomedical Corporation
Title: Senior Director, Bioinformatics & Software
Dates of Service: January 01, 2015 - January 01, 2020
Responsibilities: Created the vision for Talis" scientific applications, algorithms,
and computing infrastructure and tools and led teams to execute.

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: Protein Metrics Inc.
Title: Vice President of Engineering
Dates of Service: August 01, 2021 - Present
Responsibilities: Supervise software development activities.

Risk Factors

The SEC requires the company to identify risks that are specific to its business and its
financial condition. The company is still subject to all the same risks that all
companies in its business, and all companies in the economy, are exposed to. These
include risks relating to economic downturns, political and economic events and
technological developments (such as hacking and the ability to prevent hacking).
Additionally, early-stage companies are inherently more risky than more developed
companies. You should consider general risks as well as specific risks when deciding
whether to invest.

These are the risks that relate to the Company:

Uncertain Risk

An investment in the Company (also referred to as “we”, “us”, “our”, or “Company”)
involves a high degree of risk and should only be considered by those who can afford
the loss of their entire investment. Furthermore, the purchase of any of the common
stock should only be undertaken by persons whose financial resources are sufficient to
enable them to indefinitely retain an illiquid investment. Each investor in the
Company should consider all of the information provided to such potential investor
regarding the Company as well as the following risk factors, in addition to the other
information listed in the Company’s Form C. The following risk factors are not
intended, and shall not be deemed to be, a complete description of the commercial
and other risks inherent in the investment in the Company.

Our business projections are only projections

There can be no assurance that the Company will meet our projections. There can be
no assurance that the Company will be able to find sufficient demand for our product,
that people think it’s a better option than a competing product, or that we will able to



provide the service at a level that allows the Company to make a profit and still attract
business.

Any valuation at this stage is difficult to assess

The valuation for the offering was established by the Company. Unlike listed
companies that are valued publicly through market-driven stock prices, the valuation
of private companies, especially startups, is difficult to assess and you may risk
overpaying for your investment.

The transferability of the Securities you are buying is limited

Any common stock purchased through this crowdfunding campaign is subject to SEC
limitations of transfer. This means that the stock/note that you purchase cannot be
resold for a period of one year. The exception to this rule is if you are transferring the
stock back to the Company, to an “accredited investor,” as part of an offering
registered with the Commission, to a member of your family, trust created for the
benefit of yvour family, or in connection with vour death or divorce.

Your investment could be illiquid for a long time

You should be prepared to hold this investment for several years or longer. For the 12
months following your investment there will be restrictions on how you can resell the
securities you receive. More importantly, there is no established market for these
securities and there may never be one. As a result, if you decide to sell these securities
in the future, you may not be able to find a buyer. The Company may be acquired by
an existing player in the educational software development industry. However, that
may never happen or it may happen at a price that results in you losing money on this
investment.

If the Company cannot raise sufficient funds it will not succeed

The Company, is offering common stock in the amount of up to MAX FUNDING GOAL
in this offering, and may close on any investments that are made. Even if the
maximum amount is raised, the Company is likely to need additional funds in the
future in order to grow, and if it cannot raise those funds for whatever reason,
including reasons relating to the Company itself or the broader economy, it may not
survive. If the Company manages to raise only the minimum amount of funds, sought,
it will have to find other sources of funding for some of the plans outlined in “Use of
Proceeds.”

We may not have enough capital as needed and may be required to raise more capital.
We anticipate needing access to credit in order to support our working capital
requirements as we grow. Although interest rates are low, it is still a difficult
environment for obtaining credit on favorable terms. If we cannot obtain credit when
we need it, we could be forced to raise additional equity capital, modify our growth
plans, or take some other action. Issuing more equity may require bringing on
additional investors. Securing these additional investors could require pricing our
equity below its current price. If so, your investment could lose value as a result of this
additional dilution. In addition, even if the equity is not priced lower, your ownership
percentage would be decreased with the addition of more investors. If we are unable



to find additional investors willing to provide capital, then it is possible that we will
choose to cease our sales activity. In that case, the only asset remaining to generate a
return on your investment could be our intellectual property. Even if we are not forced
to cease our sales activity, the unavailability of credit could result in the Company
performing below expectations, which could adversely impact the value of your
investment.

Terms of subsequent financings may adversely impact your investment

We will likely need to engage in common equity, debt, or preferred stock financings in
the future, which may reduce the value of your investment in the Common Stock.
Interest on debt securities could increase costs and negatively impact operating
results. Preferred stock could be issued in series from time to time with such
designation, rights, preferences, and limitations as needed to raise capital. The terms
of preferred stock could be more advantageous to those investors than to the holders
of Common Stock. In addition, if we need to raise more equity capital from the sale of
Common Stock, institutional or other investors may negotiate terms that are likely to
be more favorable than the terms of your investment, and possibly a lower purchase
price per share.

Management Discretion as to Use of Proceeds

QOur success will be substantially dependent upon the discretion and judgment of our
management team with respect to the application and allocation of the proceeds of
this Offering. The use of proceeds described below is an estimate based on our current
business plan. We, however, may find it necessary or advisable to re-allocate portions
of the net proceeds reserved for one category to another, and we will have broad
discretion in doing so.

Projections: Forward Looking Information

Any projections or forward looking statements regarding our anticipated financial or
operational performance are hypothetical and are based on management's best
estimate of the probable results of our operations and will not have been reviewed by
our independent accountants. These projections will be based on assumptions which
management believes are reasonable. Some assumptions invariably will not
materialize due to unanticipated events and circumstances beyond management's
control. Therefore, actual results of operations will vary from such projections, and
such variances may be material. Any projected results cannot be guaranteed.

We are reliant on one main type of service

All of our current services are variants on one type of service, providing a platform for
online capital formation. Our revenues are therefore dependent upon the market for
online capital formation.

Some of our products are still in prototype phase and might never be operational
products

It is possible that there may never be an operational product or that the product may
never be used to engage in transactions. It is possible that the failure to release the
product is the result of a change in business model upon the Company’s making a



determination that the business model, or some other factor, will not be in the best
interest of the Company and its stockholders.

Developing new products and technologies entails significant risks and uncertainties
We are currently in the research and development stage and have only manufactured a
prototype for our software. Delays or cost overruns in the development of our software
and failure of the product to meet our performance estimates may be caused by,
among other things, unanticipated technological hurdles, difficulties in
manufacturing, changes to design and regulatory hurdles. Any of these events could
materially and adversely affect our operating performance and results of operations.

Minority Holder; Securities with Voting Rights

The common stock that an investor is buying has voting rights attached to them.
However, you will be part of the minority shareholders of the Company and have
agreed to appoint the Chief Executive Officer of the Company (the “CEQ”), or his or
her successor, as your voting proxy. You are trusting in management discretion in
making good business decisions that will grow your investments. Furthermore, in the
event of a liquidation of our company, vou will only be paid out if there is any cash
remaining after all of the creditors of our company have been paid out.

You are trusting that management will make the best decision for the company
You are trusting in management discretion. You are buying securities as a minority
holder, and therefore must trust the management of the Company to make good
business decisions that grow your investment.

Insufficient Funds

The company might not sell enough securities in this offering to meet its operating
needs and fulfill its plans, in which case it will cease operating and you will get
nothing. Even if we sell all the common stock we are offering now, the Company will
(possibly) need to raise more funds in the future, and if it can’t get them, we will fail.
Even if we do make a successful offering in the future, the terms of that offering might
result in your investment in the company being worth less, because later investors
might get better terms.

This offering involves “rolling closings,” which may mean that earlier investors may
not have the benefit of information that later investors have.

Once we meet our target amount for this offering, we may request that StartEngine
instruct the escrow agent to disburse offering funds to us. At that point, investors
whose subscription agreements have been accepted will become our investors. All
early-stage companies are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties, and it is not
uncommon for material changes to be made to the offering terms, or to companies’
businesses, plans or prospects, sometimes on short notice. When such changes
happen during the course of an offering, we must file an amended to our Form C with
the SEC, and investors whose subscriptions have not vet been accepted will have the
right to withdraw their subscriptions and get their money back. Investors whose
subscriptions have already been accepted, however, will already be our investors and
will have no such right.



Our new product could fail to achieve the sales projections we expected

QOur growth projections are based on an assumption that with an increased advertising
and marketing budget our products will be able to gain traction in the marketplace at
a faster rate than our current products have. It is possible that our new products will
fail to gain market acceptance for any number of reasons. If the new products fail to
achieve significant sales and acceptance in the marketplace, this could materially and
adversely impact the value of your investment.

We face significant market competition

We will compete with larger, established companies who currently have products on
the market and/or various respective product development programs, including large
telcos, satellite operators and other companies that are building additional bandwidth.
They may have much better financial means and marketing/sales and human
resources than us. They may succeed in developing and marketing competing
equivalent products earlier than us, or superior products than those developed by us.
There can be no assurance that competitors will render our technology or products
obsolete or that the products developed by us will be preferred to any existing or
newly developed technologies. It should further be assumed that competition will
intensify.

We are an early stage company and have not yet generated any profits

AtomBeam Technologies Inc. was formed on August 17, 2017. Accordingly, the
Company has a limited history upon which an evaluation of its performance and
future prospects can be made. Our current and proposed operations are subject to all
business risks associated with new enterprises. These include likely fluctuations in
operating results as the Company reacts to developments in its market, managing its
growth and the entry of competitors into the market. We will only be able to pay
dividends on any shares once our directors determine that we are financially able to
do so. AtomBeam Technologies Inc. has incurred a net loss and has had limited
revenues generated since inception. There is no assurance that we will be profitable in
the next 3 years or generate sufficient revenues to pay dividends to the holders of the
shares.

We are an early stage company and have limited revenue and operating history

The Company has a short history, few customers, and effectively no revenue. If you
are investing in this company, it's because you think that AtomBeam's software
product is a good idea, that the team will be able to successfully market, and sell the
product or service, that we can price them right and sell them to enough peoples so
that the Company will succeed. Further, we have never turned a profit and there is no
assurance that we will ever be profitable.

We have existing patents that we might not be able to protect properly

One of the Company's most valuable assets is its intellectual property. The Company's
owns a trademark for "AtomBeam", and has copyrights, Internet domain names, and
trade secrets. The Company has been assigned seven issued patents, an allowed patent
and 11 pending patents. We believe one of the most valuable components of the
Company is our intellectual property portfolio. Due to the value, competitors may



misappropriate or violate the rights owned by the Company. The Company intends to
continue to protect its intellectual property portfolio from such violations. It is
important to note that unforeseeable costs associated with such practices may invade
the capital of the Company.

We have pending patent approval’s that might be vulnerable

One of the Company's most valuable assets is its intellectual property. The Company's
intellectual property such as patents, trademarks, copyrights, Internet domain names,
and trade secrets may not be registered with the proper authorities. We believe one of
the most valuable components of the Company is our intellectual property portfolio.
Due to the value, competitors may misappropriate or violate the rights owned by the
Company. The Company intends to continue to protect its intellectual property
portfolio from such violations. It is important to note that unforeseeable costs
associated with such practices may invade the capital of the Company due to its
unregistered intellectual property.

Our trademarks, copyrights and other intellectual property could be unenforceable or
ineffective

Intellectual property is a complex field of law in which few things are certain. It is
possible that competitors will be able to design around our intellectual property, find
prior art to invalidate it, or render the patents unenforceable through some other
mechanism. If competitors are able to bypass our trademark and copyright protection
without obtaining a sublicense, it is likely that the Company’s value will be materially
and adversely impacted. This could also impair the Company’s ability to compete in
the marketplace. Moreover, if our trademarks and copyrights are deemed
unenforceable, the Company will almost certainly lose any potential revenue it might
be able to raise by entering into sublicenses. This would cut off a significant potential
revenue stream for the Company.

The cost of enforcing our trademarks and copyrights could prevent us from enforcing
them

Patent, trademark and copyright litigation has become extremely expensive. Even if
we believe that a competitor is infringing on one or more of our patents, trademarks
or copyrights, we might choose not to file suit because we lack the cash to successfully
prosecute a multi-year litigation with an uncertain outcome; or because we believe
that the cost of enforcing our trademark(s) or copyright(s) outweighs the value of
winning the suit in light of the risks and consequences of losing it; or for some other
reason. Choosing not to enforce our trademark(s) or copyright(s) could have adverse
consequences for the Company, including undermining the credibility of our
intellectual property, reducing our ability to enter into sublicenses, and weakening
our attempts to prevent competitors from entering the market. As a result, if we are
unable to enforce our trademark(s) or copyright(s) because of the cost of enforcement,
your investment in the Company could be significantly and adversely affected.

The loss of one or more of our key personnel, or our failure to attract and retain other
highly qualified personnel in the future, could harm our business
To be successful, the Company requires capable people to run its day to day



operations. As the Company grows, it will need to attract and hire additional
employees in sales, marketing, design, development, operations, finance, legal,
human resources and other areas. Depending on the economic environment and the
Company’s performance, we may not be able to locate or attract qualified individuals
for such positions when we need them. We may also make hiring mistakes, which can
be costly in terms of resources spent in recruiting, hiring and investing in the
incorrect individual and in the time delay in locating the right employee fit. If we are
unable to attract, hire and retain the right talent or make too many hiring mistakes, it
is likely our business will suffer from not having the right employees in the right
positions at the right time. This would likely adversely impact the value of your
investment.

QOur ability to sell our product or service is dependent on outside government
regulation which can be subject to change at any time

Our ability to sell product is dependent on the outside government regulation such as
the FDA (Food and Drug Administration), FTC (Federal Trade Commission), the FCC
(Federal Communications Commission) and other relevant government laws and
regulations. The laws and regulations concerning the selling of product may be subject
to change and if they do then the selling of product may no longer be in the best
interest of the Company. At such point the Company may no longer want to sell
product and therefore your investment in the Company may be affected.

We rely on third parties to provide services essential to the success of our business
We rely on third parties to provide a variety of essential business functions for us,
including manufacturing, shipping, accounting, legal work, public relations,
advertising, retailing, and distribution. It is possible that some of these third parties
will fail to perform their services or will perform them in an unacceptable manner. It is
possible that we will experience delays, defects, errors, or other problems with their
work that will materially impact our operations and we may have little or no recourse
to recover damages for these losses. A disruption in these key or other suppliers’
operations could materially and adversely affect our business. As a result, your
investment could be adversely impacted by our reliance on third parties and their
performance.

The Company is vulnerable to hackers and cyber-attacks

As an internet-based business, we may be vulnerable to hackers who may access the
data of our investors and the issuer companies that utilize our platform. Further, any
significant disruption in service on AtomBeam Technologies Inc. or in its computer
systems could reduce the attractiveness of the platform and result in a loss of
investors and companies interested in using our platform. Further, we rely on a third-
party technology provider to provide some of our back-up technology. Any disruptions
of services or cyber-attacks either on our technology provider or on AtomBeam
Technologies Inc. could harm our reputation and materially negatively impact our
financial condition and business.

New Technology Product Risk
The Company's product creates a fundamentally new category of product, for which



there is no existing comparable product in the market. There can be no assurance that
a market for the Company’s product exists or will exist, and consequently the
Company may not be successful in selling customers licenses to use its product.

Potential for Theft of Intellectual Property

The Company's product is software, and as such, the potential exists for a third party
to copy or develop on their own a version of the Company's product. The Company is
diligent in its patent filings and intend to vigorously defend its intellectual property,
and maintains a secure approach to software development. The Company, however,
may not be aware of copying of its software or infringement of its patents by third
parties, and even if the Company is made aware of such copying or infringement, it
may not be successful in defending its rights to its intellectual property.The
Company's product is software, and as such, the potential exists for a third party to
copy or develop on their own a version of the Company's product. The Company is
diligent in its patent filings and intend to vigorously defend its intellectual property,
and maintains a secure approach to software development. The Company, however,
may not be aware of copying of its software or infringement of its patents by third
parties, and even if the Company is made aware of such copying or infringement, it
may not be successful, or be able to afford the cost, to defend its rights to its
intellectual property.

Sophisticated Engineering Reguirements

QOur software is classed as middleware, which requires users to integrate it into their
existing software. This limits the accessibility of the software to engineers who have
the technological sophistication to undertake this integration process, and costs
money and time, which may limit the appeal of AtomBeam's product to the broader
market.

Future Development Risk

For AtomBeam's software to achieve widespread acceptance, it will require a major
effort to improve its sophistication, speed, automation, and other key improvements.
Some of these improvements may prove difficult or impossible to execute, limiting the
AtomBeam product's appeal.

Unproven Market for AtomBeam s Software

AtomBeam's software is highly innovative and represents a new category for
technology products. As such, until the Company achieves substantial revenue, there
can be no assurance that a market exists for the Company's product. AtomBeam
necessarily depends on a recognition of the economic value its software provides to
prospective customers; if prospective customers do not find such economic value to
be present, the Company may not achieve its financial objectives.

The amount raised in this offering may include investments from company insiders or
immediate family members.

Officers, directors, executives, and existing owners with a controlling stake in the
company (or their immediate family members) may make investments in this offering.
Any such investments will be included in the raised amount reflected on the campaign



page.

Potential for a transaction involving investment by a blockchain company described in
the offering may not be consummated, or could be delayed, or could be closed on
terms that are not as favorable to the Company.

The Company is under a letter of intent with a blockchain company that contemplates
their investment of $5 million in the Company under favorable terms. There is a risk
that this investment does not close or closes under terms less favorable to the
Company, or is significantly delayed. If any of these events were to occur, the
Company's ability to address key initiatives may be impaired or not occur, negatively
affecting the Company.



Ownership and Capital Structure; Rights of the Securities

Ownership

The following table sets forth information regarding beneficial ownership of the
company’s holders of 20% or more of any class of voting securities as of the date of

this Offering Statement filing.

Trust Dated 2 July 2008

Charles Yeomans and The Charles C.
Yeomans And ]. Desiree LeClerc Family
Trust Dated 2 July 2008

Convertible

Promissory Note
PN-4a

Charles Yeomans and The Charles C.
Yeomans And ]. Desiree LeClerc Family
Trust Dated 2 July 2008

Convertible
Promissory Note

PN-06

Charles Yeomans and The Charles C.
Yeomans And ]. Desiree LeClerc Family
Trust Dated 2 July 2008

Convertible
Promissory Note
CN-19

Charles Yeomans and The Charles C.
Yeomans And J. Desiree LeClerc Family
Trust Dated 2 July 2008

Convertible
Promissory Note
CN-25

Charles Yeomans and The Charles C.
Yeomans And ]. Desiree LeClerc Family
Trust Dated 2 July 2008

Convertible
Promissory Note

CN-28

Number of Type of Securi
Stockholder Name Securities R Percentage
Owned
Owned
Charles Yeomans and The Charles C.
Yeomans And J. Desiree LeClerc Family 2,440,000  |Common Stock

35.3%

Wazoo Partners LLC (managed and 100%
owned by Courtney Benham)

1,460,000

Common Stock

Wazoo Partners LLC (managed and 100%
owned by Courtney Benham)

Convertible

Promissory Note
CN-20

Wazoo Partners LLC (managed and 100%
owned by Courtney Benham)

Promissory Note
PN-29

Wazoo Partners LLC (managed and 100%
owned by Courtney Benham)

Promissory Note
PN-17

Wazoo Partners LLC (managed and 100%
owned by Courtney Benham)

Convertible

Promissory Note
PN-01

Wazoo Partners LLC (managed and 100%
owned by Courtney Benham)

Convertible
Promissory Note

PN-02

Convertible




Haddad Family Trust

Aliasghar Riahi and Ali A. Riahi & Mojgan
Haddad Family Trust

Convertible
Promissory Note
PN-07

Aliasghar Riahi and Ali A. Riahi & Mojgan
Haddad Family Trust

Convertible
Promissory Note

PN-16

Aliasghar Riahi and Ali A. Riahi & Mojgan
Haddad Family Trust

Convertible

Promissory Note
CN-20

Aliasghar Riahi and Ali A. Riahi & Mojgan
Haddad Family Trust

Convertible
Promissory Note
CN-26

Aliasghar Riahi and Ali A. Riahi & Mojgan
Haddad Family Trust

Convertible
Promissory Note
CN-27

Aliasghar Riahi and Ali A. Riahi & Mojgan
Haddad Family Trust

Convertible
Promissory Note
CN-24

Aliasghar Riahi and Ali A. Riahi & Mojgan
Haddad Family Trust

Convertible
Promissory Note

PN-03

Wazoo Partners LLC (managed and 100%  |[INumber of Pmmislsﬂry Note
" i,fﬁp5§ Security atl}l%?
owned by CosréuklididehMame Securities [PRE05 &ntage
WazooPartners ELE(tmanaged-and 100% Owned _|Convertible
‘ 1 Promi Not
owned by Courtney Benham) romissory Note
PN-12
C tibl
Wazoo Partners LLC (managed and 100% ﬂm?r 1ble
1 Promissory Note
owned by Courtney Benham)
PN-15
Convertible
Wazoo Partners LLC (managed and 100% )
owned by Courtney Benham) ! Promissory Note
CN-30
ibl
Wazoo Partners LLC (managed and 100% Cﬂw‘?mh €
owned by Courtney Benham) 1 Promissory Note
’ ' CN-37
Wazoo Partners LLC (managed and 100% 1 Promissory Note
owned by Courtney Benham) PN-38
C tibl
Wazoo Partners LLC (managed and 100% ‘Dm?r 1ble
owned by Courtney Benham) 1 Promissory Note
’ ! PN-04
Aliasghar Riahi and Ali A. Riahi & Mojgan
: I8 2,636,000  |Common Stock

38.2%

The Company's Securities




The Company has authorized Common Stock, Convertible Promissory Note CN-20,
Convertible Promissory Note - Series 2020 - CF, Convertible Promissory Note CN-26,
Convertible Promissory Note CN-27, Convertible Promissory Note PN-03, Convertible
Promissory Note CN-24, Convertible Promissory Note PN-07, Convertible Promissory
Note PN-16, Convertible Promissory Note CN-23, Convertible Promissory Note CN-
23, Convertible Promissory Note CN-21, Convertible Promissory Note CN-19,
Convertible Promissory Note CN-25, Convertible Promissory Note CN-28, Convertible
Promissory Note PN-06, Convertible Promissory Note PN-4a , Convertible Promissory
Note CN-36, Convertible Promissory Note CN-22, Convertible Promissory Note CN-
35, Convertible Promissory Note CN-31, Convertible Promissory Note CN-34,
Convertible Promissory Note CN-32, Convertible Promissory Note CN-35a,
Convertible Promissory Note CN-30, Convertible Promissory Note PN-01, Convertible
Promissory Note PN-02, Convertible Promissory Note PN-04, Convertible Promissory
Note PN-05, Convertible Promissory Note PN-12, Convertible Promissory Note PN-15,
Promissory Note PN-29, Promissory Note PN-17, Convertible Promissory Note CN-37,
and Promissory Note PN-38. As part of the Regulation Crowdfunding raise, the
Company will be offering up to 789,734 of Common Stock.

Common Stock

The amount of security authorized is 40,000,000 with a total of 10,267,285
outstanding,

Voting Rights

Voting rights: Each stockholder is entitled to one vote for each share of capital stock
held by such stockholder. Please see the voting rights of securities sold in this offering.

Material Rights
Voting Rights of Securities Sold in this Offering

Voting Proxy. Each Subscriber shall appoint the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company (the “CEQ”), or his or her successor, as the Subscriber’s true and lawful
proxy and attorney, with the power to act alone and with full power of substitution, to,
consistent with this instrument and on behalf of the Subscriber, (i) vote all Securities,
(i1) give and receive notices and communications, (iii) execute any instrument or
document that the CEO determines is necessary or appropriate in the exercise of its
authority under this instrument, and (iv) take all actions necessary or appropriate in
the judgment of the CEO for the accomplishment of the foregoing. The proxy and
power granted by the Subscriber pursuant to this Section are coupled with an interest.
Such proxy and power will be irrevocable. The proxy and power, so long as the
Subscriber is an individual, will survive the death, incompetency and disability of the
Subscriber and, so long as the Subscriber is an entity, will survive the merger or
reorganization of the Subscriber or any other entity holding the Securities. However,
the Proxy will terminate upon the closing of a firm-commitment underwritten public
offering pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act of
1935 covering the offer and sale of Common Stock or the effectiveness of a



registration statement under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 covering the
Common Stock.

Material Rights & Stockholder Agreement

The Company has a stockholder agreement from 2019 executed between then
stockolders and the company. This Agreement only applies to stockholders who
executed the Agreement and any Stockholders who execute Joinder Agreements.
Investors in this offering will not be signing a Joinder Agreement,

The Stockholder Agreement contains transfer restrictions and drag along rights as key
provisions. If a majority of the shareholders approve a liquidity event, all Stockholders
agree to the transaction.

Stock Options, Warrants, RSUs

The amount outstanding includes the following calculation which provides summary
information for the company’s capitalization.

Issued and outstanding shares of common stock: 6,908,551

Shares subject to issuance pursuant to RSUs and Options: 2,854,666
Shares subject to issuance pursuant to warrants: 504,068

Shares outstanding or issuable for RSUs/Options/Warrants: 10,267,285
» Warrants

The following warrants have been issued by the company as consideration for services
provided by vendors and advisors.

Warrant Number Shares Exercise Price Issue Date Expiration Date
1 100,000 $0.17 2-01-2019 04-30-2024

2 60,698 $0.01 08-08-2019 07-31-2024

328,000 $0.17 07-17-2019 04-30-2024

4 28,000 $0.17 07-17-2019 04-30-2024

556,685 $0.001 09-01-2021 03-14-2024

6 56,685 $0.001 09-01-2021 03-14-2024

790,000 $0.05 09-01-2021 01-07-2025

8 84,000 $0.17 02-01-2019 01-21-2024

Total 504,068



For Warrants 1, 2, 3, 4, 7 and 8, the following vesting schedule applies: The exercise of
the Warrants shall be subject to vesting as follows: One-forty-eighth (1,/48th) of the
total number of Shares shall vest upon the expiration of each full calendar month of
each Holder’s continuous service to the Company for the each of the next forty-eight
(48) months, such that all such Shares shall be vested on the last day of the month in
which the four-vear anniversary of the vesting start date falls. No Shares shall vest
following any termination of each Holder’s continuous service to the Company, and
any unvested Shares shall thereupon be forfeit without consideration. The Warrants
shall only be exercisable, at any time or from time to time, with respect to Shares that
have vested.

For Warrants 5 and 6, the following vesting schedule applies: Upon presentation of an
invoice by a Holder to the Company on the basis of work performed by Holder and
other personnel for the Company as detailed in such invoice, an equal number of
Shares will vest as USD are invoiced. For example, if an invoice is presented by each
Holder for USD$1,000, at that time 1,000 Shares will vest under the Warrant. No
Shares shall vest following any termination of Holder’s continuous service to the
Company, and any unvested Shares shall thereupon be forfeit without consideration.
This Warrant shall only be exercisable, at any time or from time to time, with respect
to Shares that have vested.

« 2019 Stock Incentive Plan

650,000 shares of common stock are issuable pursuant to exercise of options that have
been granted to employees, consultants and advisors (“Options™).

Options Granted

Option number Options Granted Vesting Schedule Vesting Start Date Exercise Price
140,000 201-Apr-19 $0.12
275,000 101-Feb-19 $0.05
335,000 1 01-Nov-18 $0.10
4 35,000 1 01-Jun-19 $0.12
520,000 201-Apr-18 $0.05
6 15,000 4 01-Jan-19 $0.17
7 70,000 2 01-Aug-18 $0.05
8 35,000 1 01-Sep-20 $0.05
940,000 501-Aug-19 $0.12

10 35,000 1 01-Feb-19 $0.12



11 250,000 2 01-Aug-21 $0.05
Total 650,000
2019 Stock Incentive Plan vesting schedules:

1. Four years monthly, with no cliff: One-forty-eighth (1/48th) of the total number of
shares subject to such option shall vest upon the expiration of each full calendar
month of the grantee’s continuous service to the Company for the each of the next
forty-eight (48) months, such that all such options shall be vested on the last day of
the month in which the four-year anniversary of the vesting start date falls.

2. Four years monthly, with one-year cliff: One-fourth (1/4th) of the total number of
shares subject to such option shall vest on the first anniversary of the vesting start
date so long as the grantee provides continuous service to the Company through and
including such anniversary date; thereafter, one-forty-eighth (1/48th) of the total
number of shares subject to such option shall vest upon the expiration of each full
calendar month of the grantee’s continuous service to the Company for the each of the
next thirty-six (36) months, such that all such options shall be vested on the last day
of the month in which the four-year anniversary of the vesting start date falls.

3. Two years monthly, with no cliff: One-twenty-fourth (1/24th) of the total number of
shares subject to such option shall vest upon the expiration of each full calendar
month of the grantee’s continuous service to the Company for the each of the next
twenty-four (24) months, such that all such options shall be vested on the last day of
the month in which the four-year anniversary of the vesting start date falls.

4. Fully vested. The all shares shall be vested on the date of issuance.

5. Vesting for services. Upon presentation of an invoice by Optionee to the Company
on the basis of work performed by Optionee, an equal number of shares will vest as
USD are invoiced. For example, if an invoice is presented by Optionee for USD$1,000,
at that time 1,000 shares will vest.

« 2021 Equity Incentive Plan

2,204,666 shares of common stock are issuable pursuant to exercise of Restricted
Stock Units (“RSUs”) that have been granted to employees, consultants and advisors.
RSUs were adopted by the company in the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan to replace the
use of Options for employees, consultants and advisors as incentives.

Restricted Stock Units Granted
Holder # RSUs Vesting Start
175,000 02-01-2022

225,000 01-01-2022

5 100,000 01-01-2022



450,000 01-01-2022
550,000 01-01-2022

6 40,000 01-01-2022

7 50,000 01-01-2022
835,000 01-01-2022
935,000 01-01-2022
10 1,000 01-01-2022
11 44,000 01-01-2022
12 20,000 01-01-2022
13 20,000 01-01-2022
14 10,000 01-01-2022
15 150,000 01-31-2022
16 25,000 01-01-2022
17 100,000 01-01-2022
18 25,000 01-01-2022
19 10,000 01-01-2022
20 50,000 01-01-2022
21 66,666 01-01-2022
22 50,000 01-01-2022
23 50,000 01-01-2022
24 42,000 01-01-2022
25 25,000 01-01-2022
26 96,000 01-01-2022
27 226,000 01-01-2022
28 480,000 01-01-2022
29 69,000 01-01-2022

30 25,000 04-01-2022



31 70,000 04-01-2022
32 60,000 05-19-2022
33 10,000 05-19-2022
34 20,000 04-01-2022

Total 2,204,666
2021 Equity Incentive Plan vesting schedule:

(a) Two-Tiered Vesting. The vesting of the RSUs is conditioned on satisfaction of two
vesting requirements before the Expiration Date or earlier termination of the RSUs
pursuant to the Plan or the RSU Agreement: a time- and service-based requirement
(the “Service Requirement”) and a liquidity-event requirement (the “Liquidity Event
Requirement™), each as described below.

(i) Service Requirement. For so long as Participant is in continuous Service through
each applicable date, the Service Requirement will be satisfied with respect to (i)
twenty-five percent (25%) of the RSUs subject to this award on the one-year
anniversary of the first Quarterly Vesting Date (as defined below) to occur
immediately following the Vesting Commencement Date, and (ii) an additional 1/12 of
the RSUs thereafter on each subsequent Quarterly Vesting Date. For purposes of this
Notice of Grant and the RSU Agreement, “Quarterly Vesting Date” shall mean
February 15, May 15, August 15 and November 15.

(ii) Liquidity Event Requirement. The Liquidity Event Requirement will be satisfied on
the earliest to occur of: (A) the effective date of an underwritten initial public offering
of the Company’s securities (the “IPO”) and (B) the date of an Acquisition, but only if
the Acquisition also constitutes a permissible payment event as a change in
ownership, effective control, or sale of substantially all of the assets, as provided
under Section 409A (the earliest of the prong (A) or (B) to occur, the “Initial Vesting
Event™).

(b) RSUs Vested at Initial Vesting Event. If at the time of the Initial Vesting Event,
Participant is not in continuous Service and did not meet the Service Requirement
with respect to any portion of the RSUs, then no portion of the RSUs shall vest. If at
the time of the Initial Vesting Event, Participant is in continuous Service or has ceased
to be in continuous Service but did meet the Service Requirement with respect to any
portion of the RSUs, then the RSUs shall vest as to the number of RSUs, if any, that
have satisfied the Service Requirement as of the Initial Vesting Event in accordance
with clause (a)(i) above.

(c) RSUs Vested after Initial Vesting Event. If Participant is in continuous Service at
the time of the Initial Vesting Event, then with respect to RSUs that have not vested as
of the Initial Vesting Event under the preceding clause (b) above, vesting shall
continue after the Initial Vesting Event in accordance with the Service Requirement
set forth in clause (a)(i) above (each subsequent vesting date, a “Subsequent Vesting



Event™),
Convertible Promissory Note CN-20

The security will convert into (i) common stock; (ii) any securities conferring the right
to purchase common stock; or (iii) any securities directly or indirectly convertible
into, or exchangeable for (with or without additional consideration) common stock.
and the terms of the Convertible Promissory Note CN-20 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $60,000.00

Maturity Date: March 31, 2023

Interest Rate: 5.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $8,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: The next equity financing, subject to a minimum total amount
raised such sale in a transaction or series of transactions of $4,000,000.

Material Rights

Upon sale or merger of the Company, the Company will pay holders an amount equal
to the outstanding principal balance of the notes plus all accrued and unpaid
interest.

Convertible Promissory Note - Series 2020 - CF

The security will convert into Common stock and the terms of the Convertible
Promissory Note - Series 2020 - CF are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $2,542,107.00

Maturity Date: January 05, 2023

Interest Rate: 5.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $10,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: January 05, 2023, or when company raises at least $1,000,000.00
in a Qualified Equity Financing, whichever is sooner.

Material Rights
Conversion; Repayment Premium Upon Sale of the Company.

(a) In the event that the Company issues and sells shares of its Common Stock to
investors (the “Equity Investors™) on or before the date of the repayment in full of this
Note in a transaction or series of transactions pursuant to which the Company issues
and sells shares of its Common Stock resulting in gross proceeds to the Company of at
least $1,000,000.00 (excluding the conversion of the Notes and any other debt) (a
“Qualified Financing”), then it converts into Common Stock at conversion price equal
to the lesser of (i) 80% of the per share price paid by the Investors or (ii) the price
equal to the quotient of $10,000,000.00 divided by the aggregate number of
outstanding common shares of the Company as of immediately prior to the initial



closing of the Qualified Financing (assuming full conversion or exercise of all
convertible and exercisable securities then outstanding other than the Notes.)

(b) If the conversion of the Note would result in the issuance of a fractional share, the
Company shall, in lieu of issuance of any fractional share, pay the Investor otherwise
entitled to such fraction a sum in cash equal to the product resulting from multiplying
the then current fair market value of one share of the class and series of capital stock
into which this Note has converted by such fraction.

(c) Notwithstanding any provision of this Note to the contrary, if the Company
consummates a Sale of the Company (as defined below) prior to the conversion or
repayment in full of this Note, then (i) the Company will give the Investor at least 15
days prior written notice of the anticipated closing date of such Sale of the Company
and (ii) at the closing of such Sale of the Company, in full satisfaction of the
Company’s obligations under this Note, the Company will pay to the Investor an
agegregate amount equal to the greater of (a) the agegregate amount of the principal
and all unaccrued and unpaid interest under this Note or (b) the amount the Investor
would have been entitled to receive in connection with such Sale of the Company if
the aggregate amount of principal and interest then outstanding under this Note had
been converted into shares of Common Stock of the Company pursuant to Section 3(a)
immediately prior to the closing of such Sale of the Company.

(d) For the purposes of this Note: “Sale of the Company” shall mean (i) any
consolidation or merger of the Company with or into any other corporation or other
entity or person, or any other corporate reorganization, other than any such
consolidation, merger or reorganization in which the stockholders of the Company
immediately prior to such consolidation, merger or reorganization, continue to hold
at least a majority of the voting power of the surviving entity in substantially the same
proportions (or, if the surviving entity is a wholly owned subsidiary, its parent)
immediately after such consolidation, merger or reorganization; (ii) any transaction or
series of related transactions to which the Company is a party in which in excess of
50% of the Company’s voting power is transferred; provided, however, that a Sale of
the Company shall not include any transaction or series of transactions principally for
bona fide equity financing purposes in which cash is received by the Company or any
successor or indebtedness of the Company is cancelled or converted or a combination
thereof; or (iii) a sale, lease, exclusive license or other disposition of all or
substantially all of the assets of the Company.

(e) Certain holders of the Notes are qualified to receive bonus shares upon conversion
of their Notes based on timing of their investments and other factors. Such shares
would increase the total number of shares that would otherwise be issuable upon
conversion of the Notes.

Maturity.

Unless this Note has been previously converted in accordance with the terms of this
Note, the entire outstanding principal balance and all unpaid accrued interest shall
automatically be converted into Common Stock at a price per security equal to the



quotient of Common Stock divided by the aggregate number of outstanding common
shares of the Company as of immediately prior to the conversion of these Notes
(assuming full conversion or exercise of all convertible and exercisable securities then
outstanding other than the Notes.) as soon a reasonably practicable following the
Maturity Date.

Convertible Promissory Note CN-26

The security will convert into (i) common stock; (ii) any securities conferring the right
to purchase common stock; or (iii) any securities directly or indirectly convertible
into, or exchangeable for (with or without additional consideration) common stock.
and the terms of the Convertible Promissory Note CN-26 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $10,000.00

Maturity Date: July 15, 2023

Interest Rate: 5.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $8,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: The next equity financing, subject to a minimum total amount
raised such sale in a transaction or series of transactions of $4,000,000.

Material Rights

Upon sale or merger of the Company, the Company will pay holders an amount equal
to the outstanding principal balance of the notes plus all accrued and unpaid interest.

Convertible Promissory Note CN-27

The security will convert into (1) common stock; (i) any securities conferring the right
to purchase common stock; or (iii) any securities directly or indirectly convertible
into, or exchangeable for (with or without additional consideration) common stock.
and the terms of the Convertible Promissory Note CN-27 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $22,500.00

Maturity Date: September 30, 2023

Interest Rate: 5.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $8,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: The next equity financing, subject to a minimum total amount
raised such sale in a transaction or series of transactions of $4,000,000.

Material Rights

Upon sale or merger of the Company, the Company will pay holders an amount equal
to the outstanding principal balance of the notes plus all accrued and unpaid interest.

Convertible Promissory Note PN-03

The security will convert into The company’s common stock or preferred stock or any



securities conferring the right to purchase the company’s common stock or preferred
stock or securities convertible into, or exchangeable for (with or without additional
consideration), the company’s common stock or preferred stock, except any security
granted, issued and/or sold by the company to any director, officer, employee or
consultant of the company in such capacity for the primary purpose of soliciting or
retaining their services. and the terms of the Convertible Promissory Note PN-03 are
outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $10,000.00

Maturity Date: April 01, 2024

Interest Rate: 5.0%

Discount Rate: 5.0%

Valuation Cap: $8,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: The next sale (or series of related sales) by the Company of its
Equity Securities from which the Company receives gross proceeds of not less than
$4,000,000 (excluding the aggregate amount of debt securities converted into Equity
Securities upon conversion of the Notes).

Material Rights

Upon sale or merger of the Company, the Company will pay holders an amount equal
to the outstanding principal balance of the notes plus all accrued and unpaid interest.

Convertible Promissory Note CN-24

The security will convert into (i) common stock; (ii) any securities conferring the right
to purchase common stock; or (iii) any securities directly or indirectly convertible
into, or exchangeable for (with or without additional consideration) common stock.
and the terms of the Convertible Promissory Note CN-24 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $10,000.00

Maturity Date: June 15, 2023

Interest Rate: 5.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $8,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: The next equity financing, subject to a minimum total amount
raised such sale in a transaction or series of transactions of $4,000,000.

Material Rights

Upon sale or merger of the Company, the Company will pay holders an amount equal
to the outstanding principal balance of the notes plus all accrued and unpaid interest.

Convertible Promissory Note PN-07

The security will convert into The company’s common stock or preferred stock or any
securities conferring the right to purchase the company’s common stock or preferred
stock or securities convertible into, or exchangeable for (with or without additional
consideration), the company’s common stock or preferred stock, except any security



granted, issued and/or sold by the company to any director, officer, employee or
consultant of the company in such capacity for the primary purpose of soliciting or
retaining their services. and the terms of the Convertible Promissory Note PN-07 are
outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $12,500.00

Maturity Date: April 21, 2024

Interest Rate: 5.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $8,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: The next sale (or series of related sales) by the Company of its
Equity Securities from which the Company receives gross proceeds of not less than
$4,000,000 (excluding the aggregate amount of debt securities converted into Equity
Securities upon conversion of the Notes).

Material Rights

Upon sale or merger of the Company, the Company will pay holders an amount equal
to the outstanding principal balance of the notes plus all accrued and unpaid interest.

Convertible Promissory Note PN-16

The security will convert into The company’s common stock or preferred stock or any
securities conferring the right to purchase the company’s common stock or preferred
stock or securities convertible into, or exchangeable for (with or without additional
consideration), the company’s common stock or preferred stock, except any security
granted, issued and/or sold by the company to any director, officer, employee or
consultant of the company in such capacity for the primary purpose of soliciting or
retaining their services. and the terms of the Convertible Promissory Note PN-16 are
outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $10,000.00

Maturity Date: June 30, 2022

Interest Rate: 5.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $8,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: The next sale (or series of related sales) by the Company of its
Equity Securities from which the Company receives gross proceeds of not less than
$4,000,000 (excluding the aggregate amount of debt securities converted into Equity
Securities upon conversion of the Notes).

Material Rights

Upon sale or merger of the Company, the Company will pay holders an amount equal
to the outstanding principal balance of the notes plus all accrued and unpaid interest.

Convertible Promissory Note CN-23

The security will convert into (i) common stock; (ii) any securities conferring the right



to purchase common stock; or (iii) any securities directly or indirectly convertible
into, or exchangeable for (with or without additional consideration) common stock.
and the terms of the Convertible Promissory Note CN-23 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $10,000.00

Maturity Date: June 09, 2023

Interest Rate: 5.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $6,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: The next equity financing, subject to a minimum total amount
raised such sale in a transaction or series of transactions of $2,000,000.

Material Rights

Upon sale or merger of the Company, the Company will pay holders an amount equal
to the outstanding principal balance of the notes plus all accrued and unpaid interest.

Convertible Promissory Note CN-23

The security will convert into (i) common stock; (ii) any securities conferring the right
to purchase common stock; or (iii) any securities directly or indirectly convertible
into, or exchangeable for (with or without additional consideration) common stock.
and the terms of the Convertible Promissory Note CN-23 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $10,000.00

Maturity Date: June 09, 2023

Interest Rate: 5.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $6,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: The next equity financing, subject to a minimum total amount
raised such sale in a transaction or series of transactions of $4,000,000.

Material Rights

Upon sale or merger of the Company, the Company will pay holders an amount equal
to the outstanding principal balance of the notes plus all accrued and unpaid interest.

Convertible Promissory Note CN-21

The security will convert into (i) common stock; (ii) any securities conferring the right
to purchase common stock; or (iii) any securities directly or indirectly convertible
into, or exchangeable for (with or without additional consideration) common stock.
and the terms of the Convertible Promissory Note CN-21 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $10,000.00
Maturity Date: May 14, 2023
Interest Rate: 5.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $6,000,000.00



Conversion Trigger: The next equity financing, subject to a minimum total amount
raised such sale in a transaction or series of transactions of $4,000,000.

Material Rights

Upon sale or merger of the Company, the Company will pay holders an amount equal
to the outstanding principal balance of the notes plus all accrued and unpaid interest.

Convertible Promissory Note CN-19

The security will convert into (i) common stock; (ii) any securities conferring the right
to purchase common stock; or (iii) any securities directly or indirectly convertible
into, or exchangeable for (with or without additional consideration) common stock.
and the terms of the Convertible Promissory Note CN-19 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $60,000.00

Maturity Date: March 21, 2023

Interest Rate: 5.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $8,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: The next equity financing, subject to a minimum total amount
raised such sale in a transaction or series of transactions of $4,000,000.

Material Rights

Upon sale or merger of the Company, the Company will pay holders an amount equal
to the outstanding principal balance of the notes plus all accrued and unpaid interest.

Convertible Promissory Note CN-25

The security will convert into (i) common stock; (ii) any securities conferring the right
to purchase common stock; or (iii) any securities directly or indirectly convertible
into, or exchangeable for (with or without additional consideration) common stock.
and the terms of the Convertible Promissory Note CN-25 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $20,000.00

Maturity Date: July 19, 2023

Interest Rate: 5.0%

Discount Rate: 0.2%

Valuation Cap: $8,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: The next equity financing, subject to a minimum total amount
raised such sale in a transaction or series of transactions of $4,000,000.

Material Rights

Upon sale or merger of the Company, the Company will pay holders an amount equal
to the outstanding principal balance of the notes plus all accrued and unpaid interest.

Convertible Promissory Note CN-28



The security will convert into (i) common stock; (ii) any securities conferring the right
to purchase common stock; or (iii) any securities directly or indirectly convertible
into, or exchangeable for (with or without additional consideration) common stock.
and the terms of the Convertible Promissory Note CN-28 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $6,000.00

Maturity Date: September 30, 2023

Interest Rate: 5.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $8,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: The next equity financing, subject to a minimum total amount
raised such sale in a transaction or series of transactions of $4,000,000.

Material Rights

Upon sale or merger of the Company, the Company will pay holders an amount equal
to the outstanding principal balance of the notes plus all accrued and unpaid interest.

Convertible Promissory Note PN-06

The security will convert into The company’s common stock or preferred stock or any
securities conferring the right to purchase the company’s common stock or preferred
stock or securities convertible into, or exchangeable for (with or without additional
consideration), the company’s common stock or preferred stock, except any security
granted, issued and/or sold by the company to any director, officer, employee or
consultant of the company in such capacity for the primary purpose of soliciting or
retaining their services. and the terms of the Convertible Promissory Note PN-06 are
outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $12,500.00

Maturity Date: April 01, 2024

Interest Rate: 5.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $8,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: The next sale (or series of related sales) by the Company of its
Equity Securities from which the Company receives gross proceeds of not less than
$4,000,000 (excluding the aggregate amount of debt securities converted into Equity
Securities upon conversion of the Notes).

Material Rights

Upon sale or merger of the Company, the Company will pay holders an amount equal
to the outstanding principal balance of the notes plus all accrued and unpaid interest.

Convertible Promissory Note PN-4a

The security will convert into The company’s common stock or preferred stock or any
securities conferring the right to purchase the company’s common stock or preferred
stock or securities convertible into, or exchangeable for (with or without additional



consideration), the company’s common stock or preferred stock, except any security
granted, issued and/or sold by the company to any director, officer, employee or
consultant of the company in such capacity for the primary purpose of soliciting or
retaining their services. and the terms of the Convertible Promissory Note PN-4a are
outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $10,000.00

Maturity Date: March 01, 2024

Interest Rate: 5.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $8,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: The next sale (or series of related sales) by the Company of its
Equity Securities from which the Company receives gross proceeds of not less than
$4,000,000 (excluding the aggregate amount of debt securities converted into Equity

Securities upon conversion of the Notes).
Material Rights

Upon sale or merger of the Company, the Company will pay holders an amount equal
to the outstanding principal balance of the notes plus all accrued and unpaid interest.

Convertible Promissory Note CN-36

The security will convert into (i) common stock; (ii) any securities conferring the right
to purchase common stock; or (iii) any securities directly or indirectly convertible
into, or exchangeable for (with or without additional consideration) common stock.
and the terms of the Convertible Promissory Note CN-36 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $10,000.00

Maturity Date: June 06, 2023

Interest Rate: 5.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $8,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: The next equity financing, subject to a minimum total amount
raised such sale in a transaction or series of transactions of $2,000,000.

Material Rights

Upon sale or merger of the Company, the Company will pay holders an amount equal
to the outstanding principal balance of the notes plus all accrued and unpaid interest.

Convertible Promissory Note CN-22

The security will convert into (i) common stock; (ii) any securities conferring the right
to purchase common stock; or (iii) any securities directly or indirectly convertible
into, or exchangeable for (with or without additional consideration) common stock.
and the terms of the Convertible Promissory Note CN-22 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $5,000.00



Maturity Date: June 08, 2023

Interest Rate: 5.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $6,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: The next equity financing, subject to a minimum total amount
raised such sale in a transaction or series of transactions of $4,000,000.

Material Rights

Upon sale or merger of the Company, the Company will pay holders an amount equal
to the outstanding principal balance of the notes plus all accrued and unpaid interest.

Convertible Promissory Note CN-35

The security will convert into (i) common stock; (ii) any securities conferring the right
to purchase common stock; or (iii) any securities directly or indirectly convertible
into, or exchangeable for (with or without additional consideration) common stock.
and the terms of the Convertible Promissory Note CN-35 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $5,000.00
Maturity Date: June 24, 2024

Interest Rate: 5.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $10,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: The next equity financing, subject to a minimum total amount
raised such sale in a transaction or series of transactions of $4,000,000.

Material Rights

Upon sale or merger of the Company, the Company will pay holders an amount equal
to the outstanding principal balance of the notes plus all accrued and unpaid interest.

Convertible Promissory Note CN-31

The security will convert into (1) common stock; (ii) any securities conferring the right
to purchase common stock; or (iii) any securities directly or indirectly convertible
into, or exchangeable for (with or without additional consideration) common stock.
and the terms of the Convertible Promissory Note CN-31 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $10,000.00

Maturity Date: November 19, 2023

Interest Rate: 5.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $6,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: The next equity financing, subject to a minimum total amount
raised such sale in a transaction or series of transactions of $4,000,000.

Material Rights



Upon sale or merger of the Company, the Company will pay holders an amount equal
to the outstanding principal balance of the notes plus all accrued and unpaid interest.

Convertible Promissory Note CN-54

The security will convert into (i) common stock; (ii) any securities conferring the right
to purchase common stock; or (iii) any securities directly or indirectly convertible
into, or exchangeable for (with or without additional consideration) common stock.
and the terms of the Convertible Promissory Note CN-34 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $10,000.00

Maturity Date: May 13, 2024

Interest Rate: 5.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $10,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: The next equity financing, subject to a minimum total amount
raised such sale in a transaction or series of transactions of $4,000,000.

Material Rights

Upon sale or merger of the Company, the Company will pay holders an amount equal
to the outstanding principal balance of the notes plus all accrued and unpaid interest.

Convertible Promissory Note CN-32

The security will convert into (i) common stock; (ii) any securities conferring the right
to purchase common stock; or (iii) any securities directly or indirectly convertible
into, or exchangeable for (with or without additional consideration) common stock.
and the terms of the Convertible Promissory Note CN-32 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $10,000.00

Maturity Date: March 24, 2024

Interest Rate: 5.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $10,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: The next equity financing, subject to a minimum total amount
raised such sale in a transaction or series of transactions of $5,000,000.

Material Rights

Upon sale or merger of the Company, the Company will pay holders an amount equal
to the outstanding principal balance of the notes plus all accrued and unpaid interest.

Convertible Promissory Note CN-35a

The security will convert into (1) common stock; (i) any securities conferring the right
to purchase common stock; or (iii) any securities directly or indirectly convertible
into, or exchangeable for (with or without additional consideration) common stock.
and the terms of the Convertible Promissory Note CN-35a are outlined below:



Amount outstanding: $60,000.00

Maturity Date: June 06, 2023

Interest Rate: 5.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $8,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: The next equity financing, subject to a minimum total amount
raised such sale in a transaction or series of transactions of $2,000,000.

Material Rights

Upon sale or merger of the Company, the Company will pay holders an amount equal
to the outstanding principal balance of the notes plus all accrued and unpaid interest.

Convertible Promissory Note CN-30

The security will convert into (i) common stock; (ii) any securities conferring the right
to purchase common stock; or (iii) any securities directly or indirectly convertible
into, or exchangeable for (with or without additional consideration) common stock.
and the terms of the Convertible Promissory Note CN-30 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $100,000.00

Maturity Date: January 26, 2024

Interest Rate: 5.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $8,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: The next equity financing, subject to a minimum total amount
raised such sale in a transaction or series of transactions of $4,000,000.

Material Rights

Upon sale or merger of the Company, the Company will pay holders an amount equal
to the outstanding principal balance of the notes plus all accrued and unpaid interest.

Convertible Promissory Note PN-01

The security will convert into The company’s common stock or preferred stock or any
securities conferring the right to purchase the company’s common stock or preferred
stock or securities convertible into, or exchangeable for (with or without additional
consideration), the company’s common stock or preferred stock, except any security
granted, issued and/or sold by the company to any director, officer, employee or
consultant of the company in such capacity for the primary purpose of soliciting or
retaining their services. and the terms of the Convertible Promissory Note PN-01 are
outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $100,000.00
Maturity Date: July 19, 2023
Interest Rate: 5.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $8,000,000.00



Conversion Trigger: The next sale (or series of related sales) by the Company of its
Equity Securities from which the Company receives gross proceeds of not less than
$4,000,000 (excluding the aggregate amount of debt securities converted into Equity
Securities upon conversion of the Notes).

Material Rights

Upon sale or merger of the Company, the Company will pay holders an amount equal
to the outstanding principal balance of the notes plus all accrued and unpaid interest.

Convertible Promissory Note PN-02

The security will convert into The company’s common stock or preferred stock or any
securities conferring the right to purchase the company’s common stock or preferred
stock or securities convertible into, or exchangeable for (with or without additional
consideration), the company’s common stock or preferred stock, except any security
granted, issued and/or sold by the company to any director, officer, employee or
consultant of the company in such capacity for the primary purpose of soliciting or
retaining their services. and the terms of the Convertible Promissory Note PN-02 are
outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $100,000.00

Maturity Date: December 05, 2023

Interest Rate: 5.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $8,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: The next sale (or series of related sales) by the Company of its
Equity Securities from which the Company receives gross proceeds of not less than
$4,000,000 (excluding the aggregate amount of debt securities converted into Equity
Securities upon conversion of the Notes).

Material Rights

Upon sale or merger of the Company, the Company will pay holders an amount equal
to the outstanding principal balance of the notes plus all accrued and unpaid interest.

Convertible Promissory Note PN-04

The security will convert into The company’s common stock or preferred stock or any
securities conferring the right to purchase the company’s common stock or preferred
stock or securities convertible into, or exchangeable for (with or without additional
consideration), the company’s common stock or preferred stock, except any security
granted, issued and/or sold by the company to any director, officer, employee or
consultant of the company in such capacity for the primary purpose of soliciting or
retaining their services. and the terms of the Convertible Promissory Note PN-04 are
outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $100,000.00
Maturity Date: April 23, 2023



Interest Rate: 5.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $8,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: The next sale (or series of related sales) by the Company of its
Equity Securities from which the Company receives gross proceeds of not less than
$4,000,000 (excluding the aggregate amount of debt securities converted into Equity
Securities upon conversion of the Notes).

Material Rights

Upon sale or merger of the Company, the Company will pay holders an amount equal
to the outstanding principal balance of the notes plus all accrued and unpaid interest.

Convertible Promissory Note PN-05

The security will convert into The company’s common stock or preferred stock or any
securities conferring the right to purchase the company’s common stock or preferred
stock or securities convertible into, or exchangeable for (with or without additional
consideration), the company’s common stock or preferred stock, except any security
granted, issued and/or sold by the company to any director, officer, employee or
consultant of the company in such capacity for the primary purpose of soliciting or
retaining their services. and the terms of the Convertible Promissory Note PN-05 are
outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $200,000.00

Maturity Date: April 01, 2024

Interest Rate: 5.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $8,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: The next sale (or series of related sales) by the Company of its
Equity Securities from which the Company receives gross proceeds of not less than
$4,000,000 (excluding the aggregate amount of debt securities converted into Equity
Securities upon conversion of the Notes).

Material Rights

Upon sale or merger of the Company, the Company will pay holders an amount equal
to the outstanding principal balance of the notes plus all accrued and unpaid interest.

Convertible Promissory Note PN-12

The security will convert into The company’s common stock or preferred stock or any
securities conferring the right to purchase the company’s common stock or preferred
stock or securities convertible into, or exchangeable for (with or without additional
consideration), the company’s common stock or preferred stock, except any security
granted, issued and/or sold by the company to any director, officer, employee or
consultant of the company in such capacity for the primary purpose of soliciting or
retaining their services. and the terms of the Convertible Promissory Note PN-12 are



outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $100,000.00

Maturity Date: October 17, 2024

Interest Rate: 5.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $8,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: The next sale (or series of related sales) by the Company of its
Equity Securities from which the Company receives gross proceeds of not less than
$4,000,000 (excluding the aggregate amount of debt securities converted into Equity
Securities upon conversion of the Notes).

Material Rights

Upon sale or merger of the Company, the Company will pay holders an amount equal
to the outstanding principal balance of the notes plus all accrued and unpaid interest.

Convertible Promissory Note PN-15

The security will convert into The company’s common stock or preferred stock or any
securities conferring the right to purchase the company’s common stock or preferred
stock or securities convertible into, or exchangeable for (with or without additional
consideration), the company’s common stock or preferred stock, except any security
granted, issued and/or sold by the company to any director, officer, employee or
consultant of the company in such capacity for the primary purpose of soliciting or
retaining their services. and the terms of the Convertible Promissory Note PN-15 are
outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $50,000.00

Maturity Date: June 24, 2022

Interest Rate: 5.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $8,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: The next sale (or series of related sales) by the Company of its
Equity Securities from which the Company receives gross proceeds of not less than
$4,000,000 (excluding the aggregate amount of debt securities converted into Equity
Securities upon conversion of the Notes).

Material Rights

Upon sale or merger of the Company, the Company will pay holders an amount equal
to the outstanding principal balance of the notes plus all accrued and unpaid interest.

Promissory Note PN-29
The amount of securities outstanding is 100,000.

Material Rights



Principal and interest will be due upon maturity on a date that is forty-eight (48)
months from the date of issuance of the Note or the Next Equity Financing, whichever
occurs first. The Next Equity Financing is defined as a financing from which the
Company receives gross proceeds of not less than $10,000,000.

Promissory Note PN-17
The amount of securities outstanding is 150,000.
Material Rights

Principal and interest will be due upon maturity on a date that is sixty (60) months
from the date of issuance of the Note or the Next Equity Financing, whichever occurs
first. The Next Equity Financing is defined as a financing from which the Company
receives gross proceeds of not less than $10,000,000.

Convertible Promissory Note CN-37

The security will convert into (i) common stock; (ii) any securities conferring the right
to purchase common stock; or (iii) any securities directly or indirectly convertible
into, or exchangeable for (with or without additional consideration) common stock.
and the terms of the Convertible Promissory Note CN-37 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $50,000.00

Maturity Date: November 29, 2024

Interest Rate: 5.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $25,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: The next equity financing, subject to a minimum total amount
raised such sale in a transaction or series of transactions of $4,000,000.

Material Rights

Upon sale or merger of the Company, the Company will pay holders an amount equal
to the outstanding principal balance of the notes plus all accrued and unpaid interest.

Promissory Note PN-38
The amount of securities outstanding is 200,000.
Material Rights

Principal and interest will be due upon maturity on a date that is thirty six (36)
months from the date of issuance of the Note or the Next Equity Financing, whichever
occurs first. The Next Equity Financing is defined as a financing from which the
Company receives gross proceeds of not less than $5,000,000.

What it means to be a minority holder

As a minority holder of Common Stock of this offering, you have granted your votes



by proxy to the CEO of the Company. Even if you were to receive control of your
voting rights, as a minority holder, you will have limited rights in regards to the
corporate actions of the company, including additional issuances of securities,
company repurchases of securities, a sale of the company or its significant assets, or
company transactions with related parties. Further, investors in this offering may
have rights less than those of other investors, and will have limited influence on the
corporate actions of the company.

Dilution

Investors should understand the potential for dilution. The investor’s stake in a
company could be diluted due to the company issuing additional shares. In other
words, when the company issues more shares, the percentage of the company that vou
own will go down, even though the value of the company may go up. You will own a
smaller piece of a larger company. This increase in number of shares outstanding
could result from a stock offering (such as an initial public offering, another
crowdfunding round, a venture capital round, angel investment), employees
exercising stock options, grants of restricted stock, or by conversion of certain
instruments (e.g. convertible bonds, preferred shares or warrants) into stock.

If the company decides to issue more shares, an investor could experience value
dilution, with each share being worth less than before, and control dilution, with the
total percentage an investor owns being less than before. There may also be earnings
dilution, with a reduction in the amount earned per share (though this typically occurs
only if the company offers dividends, and most early stage companies are unlikely to
offer dividends, preferring to invest any earnings into the company).

Transferability of securities

For a year, the securities can only be resold:
e |nanlIPO;
e To the company;
e To an accredited investor; and

¢ To a member of the family of the purchaser or the equivalent, to a trust
controlled by the purchaser, to a trust created for the benefit of a member of the
family of the purchaser or the equivalent, or in connection with the death or
divorce of the purchaser or other similar circumstance.

Recent Offerings of Securities

We have made the following issuances of securities within the last three years:

e Name: Class A and B LLC units (AtomBeam was converted to a C Corp from
Drivewarp LLC, all units were exchanged for common stock)
Type of security sold: Equity



Final amount sold: $401,305.00

Number of Securities Sold: 6,908,551

Use of proceeds: Software development and general corporate purposes
Date: January 01, 2021

Offering exemption relied upon: Section 4(a)(2)

¢ Type of security sold: Convertible Note
Final amount sold: $1,178,500.00
Use of proceeds: Software development and general corporate purposes
Date: November 30, 2021
Offering exemption relied upon: Section 4(a)(2)

e Type of security sold: Debt
Final amount sold: $450,000.00
Use of proceeds: Software development and general corporate purposes
Date: May 19, 2022
Offering exemption relied upon: Section 4(a)(2)

o Name: Common Stock
Type of security sold: Equity
Final amount sold: $0.00
Number of Securities Sold: 193,000
Use of proceeds: Issuance in relation to cancelling a directors option agreement.
Date: June 01, 2020
Offering exemption relied upon: Section 4(a)(2)

e Type of security sold: Convertible Note
Final amount sold: $2,457,160.00
Use of proceeds: General corporate purposes and software development
Date: September 15, 2021
Offering exemption relied upon: Regulation CF

Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Financial Condition

You should read the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and
results of our operations together with our financial statements and related notes
appearing at the end of this Offering Memorandum. This discussion contains forward-
looking statements reflecting our current expectations that involve risks and
uncertainties. Actual results and the timing of events may differ materially from those
contained in these forward-looking statements due to a number of factors, including
those discussed in the section entitled “Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this Offering
Memorandum.



Results of Operations

Circumstances which led to the performance of financial statements:

During 2020 and 2021, the company was conducting software development to build
and test its product and complete filings of patents to protect its intellectual property.
The company devoted significant resources in 2021 to the development of its
principal software product.

2020

Revenue

The company had $2,000 in revenue in 2020. No cost of goods were associated with
this revenue as it was a grant from the SBA.

Expenses

Total expenses for 2020 were $508,560. Consultants, primarily software developers
and architects, were paid $377,360, while sales and marketing expenses were $19,479,
an amount that reflected both an effort by the company to conserve its cash and the
elimination of in-person trade shows due to COVID-19. Other operating expenses
were $99,518. In addition, the company accrued non-cash interest expense of $47,519
on convertible notes.

2021

Revenue

The company had %0 in revenue in 2021. No cost of goods were associated with this
revenue.

Expenses

Total expenses for 2021 were $2,189,417. Consultants, primarily software developers
and architects, were paid $800,155, up $422,795 from 2020, while sales and marketing
expenses were significantly increased from 2020 levels to $190,000, reflecting
expenses for the Company's new website, promotion, and advertising expenses for
digital marketing and higher travel expenses due to the amelioration of COVID-19.
Other operating expenses were $266,971, or $167,453 higher than in 2020 due to
higher legal and professional fees, higher insurance expense,s and higher office
supplies and software expenses. The company accrued a non-cash interest expense of
$143,176 on convertible notes, reflecting higher total convertible note balances. The
Company received $49,813 in Income from a U.S. Government grant.

Historical results and cash flows:

AtomBeam launched its product in October 2020, and since that time, AtomBeam has
focused on upgrading and refining it based on customer feedback. A key point of



emphasis, as users adopt AtomBeam’s technology, will be to build out the
infrastructure, such as technical support and certifications required by large
customers. “Productizing” AtomBeam and these support functions will require
significant investment as the company moves forward.

AtomBeam expects to begin to realize a small amount of revenue for its software
product in 2022, and a larger amount of revenue in 2023. AtomBeam's product is
highly technical and its primary market consists of large companies that generally are
slower than smaller companies in their decision-making processes, but represent large
potential long-term opportunities. In addition, because the company has been the
recipient of a government contract in the past, the opportunity for the company to
receive more government contracts in the future may be enhanced, and the company
intends to pursue these opportunities as resources permit. A U.S. Air Force Phase 1
contract totaling $49,813 in value was awarded to the company in April 2021.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

What capital resources are currently available to the Company? (Cash on hand,
existing lines of credit, shareholder loans, etc...)

As of June 2022, the Company has $333,528 in its bank account.

How do the funds of this campaign factor into your financial resources? (Are these
funds critical to your company operations? Or do you have other funds or capital
resources available?)

The StartEngine sourced capital is important but is likely to not be critical to
maintaining the Company's operations. Prior to its listing on StartEngine, the
Company had raised approximately $1.5 million in funding from angel investors, and
these same angel investors remain involved and, provided the Company continues to
make progress, may be willing to invest additional capital to support the Company.

Are the funds from this campaign necessary to the viability of the company? (Of the
total funds that your company has, how much of that will be made up of funds raised
from the crowdfunding campaign?)

While funding obtained through the campaign are important to the Company, other
sources of capital have historically been available to support the Company's
operations. Venture capital funds continue to express interest in the Company, as do
other potential investors.

How long will you be able to operate the company if you raise your minimum? What
expenses is this estimate based on?

Our current monthly burn is currently approximately $120,000, and consequently an



additional $10,000 in funding is likely to be of minor impact. Full-time staffing
currently includes a CEO, a CTO, two software engineers, and a VP of Business
Development. Part-time staff includes a CS0, an acting VP of Engineering, a
Controller, and several college student interns. There is a small degree of variability in
the monthly burn that allows for expenses to be delayed, if required, due to the cash
balance. Other expenses include $2,000 for monthly office rent, various services such
as AWS, patents, and other minor expenses. The current level of staffing is sufficient
to support the ongoing development of the core software, filing patents, working to
find prospects, and developing proposals for DoD but is inadequate for support of
more than a small number of customers, and does not allow for the robust
development speed that management believes would be in the best interest of the
company. Consequently, a need for additional capital has been identified and is being
sought through crowdfunding and other avenues.

How long will you be able to operate the company if you raise your maximum funding
goal?

Management estimates that with its planned future staff additions expected to be
onboarded with additional resources, and with the maximum funding goal met it will
be able to operate the Company for approximately 12 months.

Are there any additional future sources of capital available to your company?
(Required capital contributions, lines of credit, contemplated future capital raises,
etc...)

Several angel investors have expressed interest in continuing to support the Company
through additional investments in the future, including one angel investor who has
already invested over $1 million in the Company.

The Company has signed a non-binding letter of intent (“"LOI") with a blockchain
company under which the blockchain company would invest $5 million in AtomBeam
as a component of a broader partnership. The valuation in the LOI would be at a
substantial multiple to the valuation cap of the notes that were issued in 2021 under
our Reg CF offering. As of the date of AtomBeam'’s 2021 audit (May 16, 2022), the deal
is scheduled to close by late July. However, the LOI includes an exclusivity provision
that expired on Mavy 31, 2022, and if the Company and the blockchain company do not
agree to extend the exclusivity provision beyond May 31, 2022, the terms of the
investment by the blockchain company may be amended significantly or the
investment may not close. It is important to note that the LOI is non-binding with
respect to the deal, and closing is dependent on the blockchain company raising its
own funding and AtomBeam and the blockchain company completing mutual due
diligence and executing definitive documents. The parties, however, agree that a
transaction in the form set forth in the LOI continues to be of potential mutual benefit
to both parties and consequently discussions remain active and positive.



Indebtedness

e Creditor: Wazoo Partners LLC
Amount Owed: $150,000.00
Interest Rate: 5.0%
Maturity Date: February 26, 2025
Interest accrues and is paid upon maturity. Maturity is defined as the earlier of
the term or the Next Equity Financing, defined as a sale (or series of related
sales) by the Company of its Equity Securities from which the Company received
gross proceeds of not less than $10,000,000.

e Creditor: Wazoo Partners LLC
Amount Owed: $100,000.00
Interest Rate: 5.0%
Maturity Date: November 23, 2024
Financing, defined as a sale (or series of related sales) by the Company of its
Equity Securities from which the Company received gross proceeds of not less
than $10,000,000.

e Creditor: Wazoo Partners LLC
Amount Owed: $200,000.00
Interest Rate: 5.0%
Maturity Date: May 19, 2025
Interest accrues and is paid upon maturity. Maturity is defined as the earlier of
the term or the Next Equity Financing, defined as a sale (or series of related
sales) by the Company of its Equity Securities from which the Company received
gross proceeds of not less than $5,000,000.

e Creditor: U.S. Small Business Administration
Amount Owed: $36,400.00
Interest Rate: 5.75%
Maturity Date: June 05, 2050
Secured Loan provided by US SBA.

Related Party Transactions

¢ Name of Entity: Courtney Benham
Relationship to Company: Director
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: Courtney Benham has invested a
total of $1,600,200 in the Company via his investment vehicle Wazoo Partners,
LLC in the form of equity, convertible notes and debt.
Material Terms: The investments made by Courtney Benham using Wazoo
Partners LLC ownership are detailed in the offering materials including
convertible notes PN-1, PN-2, PN-5, PN-12, PN-15, CN-30, and also in the
straight debt notes totaling $450,190. In addition, Wazoo Partners LLC invested



$400,010 in equity when the Company was under its old name and corporate
form, drivewarp LLC. Finally, Wazoo Partners LLC invested $92,233 in the
Company's first crowdfunding capital raise on StartEngine in 2021.

¢ Name of Entity: Asghar Riahi
Relationship to Company: Officer
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: Asghar Riahi, via his family trust,
the Ali A. Riahi & Mojgan Haddad Family Trust, invested $540 at the founding of
the Company under its prior name and corporate form, drivewarp LLC, and a
total of $135,000 in convertible notes.
Material Terms: The Ali A. Riahi & Mojgan Haddad Family Trust purchased
convertible notes PN-3, PN-7, PN-16, CN-20, CN-24, CN-26 and CN-27, the
terms of which are detailed in the disclosures under convertible notes. The
purchase of his original equity stake was made at the Company's founding.

¢ Name of Entity: Mojgan Haddad
Relationship to Company: Director
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: Mojgan Haddad, a director and
wife of Asghar Riahi, via her family trust, the Ali A. Riahi & Mojgan Haddad
Family Trust, invested $540 at the founding of the Company under its prior
name and corporate form, drivewarp LLC, and a total of $135,000 in convertible
notes.
Material Terms: The Ali A. Riahi & Mojgan Haddad Family Trust purchased
convertible notes PN-3, PN-7, PN-16, CN-20, CN-24, CN-26 and CN-27, the
terms of which are detailed in the disclosures under convertible notes. The
purchase of her original equity stake was made at the Company's founding.

e Name of Entity: Charles Yeomans
Relationship to Company: Officer
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: Charles Yeomans, via his family
trust, the Charles C. Yeomans And |. Desiree LeClerc Family Trust Dated 2 July
2008, invested $400 at the founding of the Company under its prior name and
corporate form, drivewarp LLC, and a total of $108,500 in convertible notes.
Material Terms: The Charles C. Yeomans And ]. Desiree LeClerc Family Trust
Dated 2 July 2008 purchased convertible notes PN-4a, PN-6, CN-19, CN-25, and
CN-28, the terms of which are detailed in the disclosures under convertible
notes. The purchase of his original equity stake was made at the Company's
founding.

Valuation

Pre-Money Valuation: $51,336,425.00
Valuation Details:

The valuation was determined on the basis of the achievement of key milestones and



comparisons with other companies at a similar stage of development. These
milestones include:

« Minimum Viable Product has been extensively tested by multiple large corporations
and smaller companies and has been determined to be fully functional

» First commercial revenue contract signed with Saab
« Awarded two U.S. government contracts by the U.S. Navy and the U.S. Air Force

« Sales pipeline includes multiple companies in various stages of evaluation and
testing of the AtomBeam product

» Seven issued patents, one allowed patent, and 11 pending patents, with additional
potential patent filings in process

« Highly qualified engineers and sales personnel on staff sufficient to support product
development and sales engineering requirements

The Company believes that it has moved past the early startup stage and its work to
complete proof of concept pilot projects with prospective customers will result in
revenue-generating contracts in the near future. The nature of the Company’s product
is such that, once integration into a product has been completed in a product or
service of a reseller of AtomBeam’s technology, it has the potential to be used by
virtually every end-user customer of the reseller. Consequently, while it takes time to
integrate AtomBeam’s product, once this has been completed the potential for very
broad use is significant, given the advantages provided by AtomBeam. As a result,
AtomBeam expects that once its product becomes available to end-users via a reseller
it has the potential for fast adoption. This makes AtomBeam’s future potential very
significant and adds to its value.

Disclaimers

AtomBeam set its valuation internally, without a formal third-party independent
evaluation. The pre-money valuation has been calculated on a fully diluted basis. In
making this calculation, we have assumed: (i) all outstanding options, warrants, and
other securities with a right to acquire shares are exercised; and (ii) any shares
reserved for issuance under a stock plan are issued.

The pre-money valuation does not take into account any convertible securities
currently outstanding. As of December 51, 2020, the Company has issued $1,001,000
of Convertible Notes. In 2021, the Company raised $2,457, 160 by issuing convertible
notes through the StartEngine platform. The Company has accrued $86,128 of unpaid
interest on the convertible notes raised on the StartEngine platform. Please refer to
the Company Securities section of the Offering Memorandum for further details
regarding current outstanding convertible securities which may affect your ownership
in the future.

Use of Proceeds



If we raise the Target Offering Amount of $10,000.00 we plan to use these proceeds as
follows:

e StartEngine Platform Fees
3.5%

e StartEngine Service Fees
53.5%
Fees for certain services provided by StartEngine.

e (Operations
43.0%
General operating expenses include Saa$S platforms, office rent and other
operating expenses.

If we raise the over allotment amount of $3,948,670.00, we plan to use these proceeds
as follows:

e StartEngine Platform Fees
3.5%

e Marketing
10.0%
Promotional activities such as creating and posting videos and other content
marketing, as well as paying for the retention of sales personnel.

e Research & Development
30.0%
Development of the core software product and implementation tools.

e Company Employment
35.0%
Employee and consulting expenses related to sales engineering and sales
functions, as well as administrative functions of the company.

® Operations
21.5%
General operating expenses include Saa$ platforms, office rent and other

operating expenses.

The Company may change the intended use of proceeds if our officers believe it is in
the best interests of the company.

Regulatory Information

Disqualification

No disqualifying event has been recorded in respect to the company or its officers or
directors.



Compliance Failure

The company has not previously failed to comply with the requirements of Regulation
Crowdfunding.

Ongoing Reporting

The Company will file a report electronically with the SEC annually and post the
report on its website no later than April 30 (120 days after Fiscal Year End). Once
posted, the annual report may be found on the Company’s website at
https://atombeamtech.com/ (https://atombeamtech.com/investors).

The Company must continue to comply with the ongoing reporting requirements
until:

(1) it is required to file reports under Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Exchange
Act;

(2) it has filed at least one (1) annual report pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding and
has fewer than three hundred (300) holders of record and has total assets that do not
exceed $10,000,000;

(3) it has filed at least three (3) annual reports pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding;

(4) it or another party repurchases all of the securities issued in reliance on Section
4(a)(6) of the Securities Act, including any payment in full of debt securities or any
complete redemption of redeemable securities; or

(5) it liquidates or dissolves its business in accordance with state law.

Updates

Updates on the status of this Offering may be found at:
www.startengine.com/atombeam

Investing Process

See Exhibit E to the Offering Statement of which this Offering Memorandum forms a
part.
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ATOMBEAM TECHNOLOGIES INC.

(a Delaware corporation)

Financial Statements

For the calendar years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020



" IndigoSpire

CPAs & ADVISORS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

May 16, 2022

To: Board of Directors, AtomBeam Technologies, Inc.
Re: ¥E 2021 and 2020 Financial Statement Audit

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of AtomBeam Technologies,

Inc. (a corporation) (the “Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and
the related statements of income, retained earnings, and cash flows for the calendar year periods thus ended, and
the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the results of its operations, changes in
shareholders’ equity and its cash flows for the calendar year periods thus ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of and to meet our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit, We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user based on the financial statements.



In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstaternent of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of 's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Going Concern

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going
concern, As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the Company has stated that substantial doubt exists
about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. Management's evaluation of the events and
conditions and management's plans regarding these matters are also described in the Notes to the financial
statements. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this
uncertainty. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Sincerely,

IndigoSpire CPA Sroup

IndigoSpire CPA Group, LLC
Aurora, Colorado

May 16, 2022



ATOMBEAM TECHNOLOGIES INC.
BALANCE SHEETS
As of December 31, 2021 and 2020
See Independent Auditor’s Report and Notes to the Financial Statements

ASSETS 2021 2020
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalenis b 333,528 5 36,099
Total current assets 333,528 56,009
Fixed assets, net of accumulated depreciation 2.574 0
Intangible assets 201,541 93,522
Total Assets b 537,644 5 149,921

—

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current Liabilities

Accounts payable 3 56,900 5 83,596
Orther current liabilities 104,025 25
Total Current Liabilities 160,925 83,621
Notes payable 436,590 186,400

Convertible note payable, net of issuance costs and commitments
recetvable of $51,928 3,303,696 1,248,690
Accrued interest payable 215,706 72,530
Government-backed loans payable 36,300 2,400
Total Liabilities 4,153,218 1,599,641

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Commeon Stock 555,196 437,172
Retained deficit (4,170,769) (1,886,892
Total Shareholders’ Equity (3.615,574) (1,449,720}

Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity $ 537.644 % 149,921



ATOMBEAM TECHNOLOGIES INC,

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

For calendar vears ended December 31, 2021 and 2020
See Independent Auditor’s Report and Notes to the Financial Statements

Revenues, net
Operating expenses
Marketing and advertising
Selling, general and admimstrative
Total operating expenses
Met Operating Income (Loss)
Interest (expense)
Depreciation (expense)

Grant income

Tax provision (benefit)

Met Income (Loss)

2021 2020
0 5 2,000
190,000 19,479
1,999,817 489 081
2,189,871 508,560
(2,189.417) (506,560)
(143,176) (47.519)
(643) (4,659)
49,813 0

b 2,283,877 5 558,738



ATOMBEAM TECHNOLOGIES INC.
STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

For calendar vear ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

See Independent Auditor’s Report and Notes to the Financial Statements

Balance as of January 1, 2020

lssuance of stock options

MNet loss

Balance as of December 31, 2020
lssuance of stock options

Exercise of stock options

Net loss

Balance as of December 31, 2021

Total Owners'

Common Stock | Retained Deficit | Equity
% 401,155 $ (1,328,154) % (926,999)
36,017 36,017
(558,738) (358,73R)
$ 437,172 $ (1,886,892) $ (1,449,720)
116,396 116,396
1,628 1,628
(2,283,877) (2,283,877)

$ 555,196

5 (4,170,769)

$ (3,615,574)




ATOMBEAM TECHNOLOGIES INC,
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For calendar years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020
See Independent Auditor’s Report and Notes to the Financial Statements

Operating Activities

Met Income (Loss)

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss)

to net cash provided by operations:
Add depreciation

Changes in operating asset and habilities:
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in other current habilities
Increase (decrease) in interest payable

Net cash used in operating activities

Investing Activities
Acquisition of fixed assets
Acquisition of intangible assets
Net cash used in operating activities

Financing Activities
Proceeds from capital transactions
Proceeds of notes issuance
Proceeds from convertible note issuance
Net change in cash from financing activities

MNet change in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

2021 2020
(2,283,877) $  (558,738)
643 4,639
(26,696) 41,120
104,000 (39.973)
143,176 31,426
(2,062,754) (301.506)
(3,217) 0
(107,719) (31,672)
(110,936) (31,672)
118,024 36,017
278,090 158,400
2,055,006 329,000
2,451,120 523,417
277,429 (9.761)
56,099 65,860
333,528 5 56,099




ATOMBEAM TECHNOLOGIES INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
See Independent Auditor’s Report and Notes to the Financial Statements
For calendar vear ending December 31, 2021 and 2020

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF OPERATIONS

ATOMBEAM TECHNOLOGIES INC. (which may be referred to as the “Company”, “we,” “us,” or “our™)
was organized in Delaware on August 17, 2017, The Company develops advanced software technology
using machine learning to reduce the size of individual internet of things data files.

Since Inception, the Company has primarily relied on securing funding from investors to fund its operations.
As of December 31, 2021, the Company produces negative cash flow from operations and may incur
additional losses prior to generating positive working capital. These matters raise substantial concern about
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern (see Note 3). During the next twelve months, the
Company intends to fund its operations with funding from a crowdfunding campaign (see Note 10) and the
receipt of funds from revenue producing activities, if and when such can be realized. If the Company cannot
secure additional capital, it may cease operations. These financial statements and related notes thereto do
not include any adjustments that might result from these uncertainties.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

The accounting and reporting policies of the Company conform to accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America (“US GAAP”™). In the opinion of management, all adjustments considered
necessary for the fair presentation of the financial statements for the years presented have been included.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported in the financial statements and footnotes thereto. Actual results could materially differ from these
estimates. It 15 reasonably possible that changes in estimates will occur in the near term.

Significant estimates inherent in the preparation of the accompanying financial statements include valuation
of provision for refunds and chargebacks, equity transactions and contingencies.

Risks and Uncertainties

The Company's business and operations are sensitive to general business and economic conditions in the
United States and other countries that the Company operates in. A host of factors beyond the Company's
control could cause fluctuations in these conditions. Adverse conditions may include recession, downturn
or otherwise, local competition or changes in consumer taste, These adverse conditions could affect the
Company's financial condition and the results of its operations.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company maintains its cash with a major financial institution located in the United States of America,
which i1t believes to be credit worthy. The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insures balances up to
S250,000. At times, the Company may maintain balances in excess of the federally insured limits.



Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers short-term, highly liquid investment with original maturities of three months or
less at the time of purchase to be cash equivalents. Cash consists of funds held in the Company’s checking
account. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company had $333,528 and 356,099 of cash on hand,

respectively.

Fixed and Intangible Assets

Property and equipment is recorded at cost. Expenditures for renewals and improvements that significantly
add to the productive capacity or extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized. Expenditures for
maintenance and repairs are charged to expense. When equipment is retired or sold, the cost and related
accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the accounts and the resultant gain or loss is reflected in
income.

Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method, based on useful lives of the assets which is four
Vears.

The Company reviews the carrying value of property and equipment for impairment whenever events and
circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable from the estimated future
cash flows expected to result from its use and eventual disposition. In cases where undiscounted expected
future cash flows are less than the carrying value, an impairment loss is recognized equal to an amount by
which the carrying value exceeds the fair value of assets. The factors considered by management in
performing this assessment include current operating results, trends and prospects, the manner in which the
property 1s used, and the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition, and other economic factors.

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company had net fixed assets of $2,574 and $0, respectively, and
intangible assets of $201,541 and 593,822, respectively.

Fair Value Measurements

Generally accepted accounting principles define fair value as the price that would be received to sell an
asset or be paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date (exit price) and such principles also establish a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the
inputs used to measure fair value using the following definitions (from highest to lowest priority):

e Level 1 — Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date
for identical, unrestricted assets or liabilities.

e Level 2 — Observable inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, including quoted prices for similar assets and
liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar assets and liabilities in markets
that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market
data by correlation or other means.

e Level 3 — Prices or valuation technigues requiring inputs that are both significant to the fair value
measurement and unobservable.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are provided for the tax etfects of transactions reporting in the financial statements and consist
of taxes currently due plus deferred taxes related primarily to differences between the basis of receivables,
inventory, property and equipment, intangible assets, and accrued expenses for financial and income tax
reporting. The deferred tax assets and habilities represent the future tax return consequences of those
differences, which will either be taxable or deductible when the assets and hiabilities are recovered or settled.
Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance when, in the opinion of management, it is more
likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. Any deferred tax



items of the Company have been fully valued based on the determination of the Company that the utilization
of any deferred tax assets is uncertain.

The Company complies with FASB ASC 740 for accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in
a company’s financial statements, which prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement process for
financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax
return. For those benefits to be recognized. a tax position must be more-likely-than-not to be sustained upon
examination by taxing authorities. FASB ASC 740 also provides guidance on derecognition, classification,
interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition. Based on the Company’s
evaluation, it has been concluded that there are no significant uncertain tax positions requiring recognition
in the Company’s financial statements. The Company believes that its income tax positions would be
sustained on audit and does not anticipate any adjustments that would result in a material change to its
financial position.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue in accordance with ASC 606 when it has satisfied the performance
obligations under an arrangement with the customer reflecting the terms and conditions under which
products or services will be provided, the fee 1s fixed or determinable, and collection of any related
receivable is probable. ASC Topic 606, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers™ establishes principles
for reporting information about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising
from the entity’s contracts to provide goods or services to customers. Revenues are recognized when control
of the promised goods or services are transferred to a customer, in an amount that reflects the consideration
that the Company expects to receive in exchange for those goods or services. The Company applies the
following five steps in order to determine the appropriate amount of revenue to be recognized as it fulfills
its obligations under each of its agreements: |) identify the contract with a customer; 2) identify the
performance obligations in the contract; 3) determine the transaction price; 4) allocate the transaction price

to performance obligations in the contract; and 3) recognize revenue as the performance obligation is
satisfied.

The Company records service revenue as services are performed using its machine learning technology.

Accounts Receivable

Customers of the Company pay at the time of ordering or purchasing so there are generally no accounts
receivable. If the Company ever sells on account, trade receivables due from customers would be
uncollateralized customer obligations due under normal trade terms requiring payment within 30 days from
the invoice date.

The Company would estimate an allowance for doubtful accounts based upon an evaluation of the current
status of receivables, historical experience, and other factors as necessary. It is reasonably possible that the
Company’s estimate of the allowance for doubtful accounts will change.,

Stock Option Expense

The Company compensates certain employees by granting options to purchase the stock of the Company
at a preset price. The Company accounts for the granting of these stock options under US GAAP by
approximating the value of the vested shares under a widely accepted valuation methods. The Company
recognized stock option expense for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 of $116.396 and $36.017,
respectively.

Advertising
The Company expenses advertising costs as they are incurred.



Recent Accounting Fronouncements

In June 2019, FASB amended ASU No. 2019-07, Compensation — Stock Compensation, to expand the
scope of Topic 718, Compensation — Stock Compensation, to include share-based payment transactions for
acquiring goods and services from nonemployees. The new standard for nonpublic entities will be effective
for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2020, and early application 15 permitted. We are currently evaluating the effect that the
updated standard will have on the financial statements and related disclosures.

In August 2019, amendments to existing accounting guidance were issued through Accounting Standards
Update 2019-15 to clarify the accounting for implementation costs for cloud computing arrangements. The
amendments specify that existing guidance for capitalizing implementation costs incurred to develop or
obtain internal-use software also applies to implementation costs incurred in a hosting arrangement that is
a service contract, The guidance 1s effective for fiscal years beginning after December 13, 2020, and interim
periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2021, and early application is permitted. We are
currently evaluating the effect that the updated standard will have on the financial statements and related
disclosures.

The FASB issues ASUs to amend the authoritative literature in ASC. There have been a number of ASUs
to date, including those above, that amend the oniginal text of ASC. Management believes that those issued
to date either (1) provide supplemental guidance, (1) are technical corrections, (111} are not applicable to us
or (1v) are not expected to have a significant impact our financial statements.

NOTE 3 - GOING CONCERN

These financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, The Company began operation in 2017,
The Company’s ability to continue may be dependent upon management’s plan to raise additional funds
and achieve profitable operations. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might be
necessary if the Company is not able to continue as a going concern.

NOTE 4 - CONVERTIBLE NOTES

As of December 31, 2020, the Company has 1ssued 51,001,000 of convertible notes. The convertible notes
provide for the conversion of the notes” principal and unpaid interest into common stock. As of December
31, 2020, the convertible notes had accrued $72,530 of unpaid interest.

In 2021, the Company raised 52,457,160 by issuing convertible notes to investors through the StartEngine
platform. The Company incurred $280,035 in costs incurred through this convertible note raise. The
company reduced the stated amount of the convertible note raise by the issuance costs on its balance sheet.
The Company accrued $86,128 of unpaid interest on the convertible notes raised on the StartEngine
platform.

NOTE 5 - INCOME TAX PROVISION

The Company has filed its corporate income tax return for the period ended December 31, 2020 and 2019,
The income tax returns will remain subject to examination by the Internal Revenue Service under the statute
of limitations for a period of three years from the date it 1s filed. The Company incurred a loss during the
period from inception through December 31, 2021 and the deferred tax asset from such losses have been
fully valued based on their uncertainty in being used.



NOTE 6 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company is not currently involved with and does not know of any pending or threatening litigation.

NOTE 7 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company has or will provide compensation to the shareholder-emplovees per the Company’s
employment policies.

Additionally, four sharecholders and/or directors are both common stockholders as well as holders of
convertible notes.

As these transactions are between related parties, there is no guarantee that the terms, pricing and conditions
of the transactions are comparable to market rates although some (but not all) of the convertible notes held
by related parties were acquired in a public offering parri passu with other convertible note holders.

NOTE 8 — PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

In the course of finalizing the 2021 financial statements, the Company made several corrections to the
presentation and classification of the financials statements from 2020, The net result of these was to
increase the net loss of the 2020 year and reduce shareholders’ equity by approximately $36,000. This
change did not materially change the Company’s outlook on its ability to continue as a going concern.

NOTE 9 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Anticipated Crowdfunded Offering

The Company 15 offering (the “Crowdfunded Offering”™) securities in a campaign under Regulation CF, The
Company must receive commitments from investors totaling the minimum amount by the offering deadline
listed in the Form C, as amended in order to receive any funds,

The Crowdfunded Offering 15 a continuation of 1ts earlier securities offering made through StartEngine and
its FINRA approved Regulation CF portal. StartEngine 1s being compensated under customary terms for
facilitating the Crowdfunded Offering.

Letter of Intent

The Company has signed a non-binding letter of intent (“LOI™) with a blockchain company under which
the blockchain company would invest $5 million in AtomBeam as a component of a broader partnership.
The valuation in the LOI would be at a substantial multiple to the valuation cap of the notes that were 1ssued
in 2021 under our Reg CF offering. As of May 16,